A waste management partnership between Bracknell Forest Borough
Council, Reading Borough Council and Wokingham District Council. Zeroing in on waste

TO:

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD

NOTICE OF MEETING

THURSDAY 7 JULY 2011

ALL MEMBERS OF THE JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board on Thursday
7 July 2011 at 6.30 pm in the David Hicks Room (formerly Committee Room 1),
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham. An agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf.

Mark Moon
Project Director

Members of the Joint Waste Disposal Board

Councillor lain McCracken, Executive Member for Culture, Corporate Services and
Public Protection

Councillor Mrs Dorothy Hayes MBE, Executive Member for the Environment
Councillor Paul Gittings, Reading Boroough Council

Councillor Rachel Eden, Reading Borough Council

Councillor Gary Cowan, Wokingham Borough Council

Councillor Rob Stanton, Wokingham Borough Council

AWON=

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS
If you hear the alarm:

Leave the building immediately

Follow the green signs

Use the stairs not the lifts

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so

t/“ Bracknell

If you require further information, please contact: Jemma Durkan
Telephone 01344 352209
/7 E-mail: jemma.durkan@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

‘." 5 WOKINGHAM
64" BOROUGH COUNCIL

Forest :
- €8 Reading
Council v.iy BOROUGH COUNCIL

PR



JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
Thursday 7 July 2011 (6.30 pm)
David Hicks Room (formerly Committee Room 1), Civic Offices, Shute End,
Wokingham.

AGENDA
Page No
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are required to declare any personal or prejudicial interests
and the nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be
considered at this meeting.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL 1-4
BOARD

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Joint Waste Disposal
Board held on 16 March 2011.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

To notify the Board of any items authorised by the Chairman on the
grounds of urgency.

PROGRESS REPORT 5-14
To inform the Board of progress since the last meeting.

AUDIT OF RE3 JOINT WASTE PFI 15 - 54

To inform the Board of the result of the recent audit of the re3 Joint
Waste PFI.

REVIEW OF JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT 55 - 68

To update the Board on the result of a review of the Joint Working
Agreement (JWA) and proposed amendments.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
To consider the following motion:

That pursuant to Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) Regulations 2000 and having
regard to the public interest, members of the public and press be
excluded from the meeting for the consideration of item 14 which
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information under the following
category of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972:

(3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person.



Report Containing Exempt Information

9. RISK REGISTER
To note the updated Risk Register.

69 -72



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
16 MARCH 2011
(6.30 - 8.45 pm)

Present: Bracknell Forest Borough Council
Councillor Mrs Dorothy Hayes MBE
Councillor lain McCracken

Reading Borough Council
Councillor Ricky Duveen

Wokingham District Council
Councillor Gary Cowan
Councillor Rob Stanton

Officers Pete Baveystock
Oliver Burt, re3 Project Manager
Pete Thompson, Reading Borough Council
Janet Dowlman, Bracknell Forest Council
Dave Fisher, Reading Borough Council
Kevin Holyer, Reading Borough Council
Steve Loudoun, Bracknell Forest Council
Mark Moon, re3 Project Director

Apologies for absence were received from:
Councillor Stanway, Reading Borough Council

25. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

26. Minutes of the Meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board held
on 16 December 2010, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Regarding matters arising from the minutes the following were discussed:

e Further amendments to the Joint Working Agreement had been finalised and
once legal advice had been sought the finalised agreement would be signed
off by the Executive of all three Councils. It was requested that the draft
amended Joint Working Agreement be brought to the next before being
signed off.

(Action: Oliver Burt)

27. Urgent Items of Business

There were no urgent items of business.

28. Appointment of Vice-Chairman
RESOLVED that Councillor Duveen be elected Vice-Chairman of the Board.



29.

Progress Report

The Board considered a report informing of progress since the last meeting on 16
December 2010. The report covered:

Operations and Facilities — Works at Smallmead on the fire protection system had
been completed and the contractor was expecting written confirmation from the
insurers confirming cover.

A letter thanking the staff at both Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) in
recognition of the continued high levels of satisfaction expressed by site users was
signed by the members. It was noted that the staff at both centres had performed

highly and the Board expressed their thanks.

Longshot Lane Mini-MRF — As a result of trials regarding a Mini-MRF at Longshot
Lane and the use of a mechanical ‘grab’, it has been agreed between the Contractor
and Officers, that a mechanical ‘grab’ be used to extract mixed recyclables.

Retail Outlet Replacement — Work with Sue Ryder Care had begun at both the
HWRCs collecting various bric-a-brac for re-sale. The scheme had been considered
successful by both site and Sue Ryder staff. An update on the ongoing work
regarding the scheme would be brought to the next meeting. (Action: Oliver Burt)

Haulage Contract Re-Let — The Haulage Market Testing process was approved by
the members on the 21 September 2010 and since that time five formal Invitations to
Tender (ITT) had been issued. Four bids were received by the closing date of the 25
March and the proposals would be assessed by WRG. Officers would relay the result
as soon as it was known and the re3 Project would be liaising with both the contractor
and council account teams to enable budgeting for any increases in the rate of
haulage.

Savings Proposals — Discussions had taken place with council officers, the PFI
contractor and the Waste Recycling Group (WRG) regarding savings and income
generation. A number of proposals relate to the current year and the re3 Project
Team have secured approximately £600,000 for the partner Councils supplementing
the overall PFI underspend. Savings for subsequent year were being considered and
officers have engaged with the private sector partners WRG to consider proposals. A
meeting would also take place between the council’s Chief Executives and the Chief
Executive of WRG to consider saving proposals.

Finance — Regarding the re3 PFI waste outturn the project was reported to have
savings of approximately half of the projected underspend totalling £1.2 million for
2011/11. This amount was significantly higher than the £400,000 underspend
previously reported due to a number of significant savings. Due to a saving by the
Contractor in PFI insurance costs the Councils are entitled to a share of this which
amounts to £68,500. Also as a result of work undertaken by the re3 Project Team
the Councils are entitled to a share of income received from the sales of recyclate
which is estimated at £362,500. The actual payment and allocations would be
finalised once the full year figures were available.

It was requested that the amounts received for trade waste be brought to the next
meeting. Also Members requested that investigation be made into dealing with trade
waste for Wokingham Borough Council and Bracknell Forest Council.

(Action: Oliver Burt)



30.

31.

32.

The development of work with The Green Machine regarding paint recycling was
discussed by the Board. The Project Officers had been investigating how to facilitate
a scheme at the recycling centres and further information would be brought to the
next meeting. (Action: Oliver Burt)

Performance — The Board noted the provisional performance figures and received a
presentation regarding maximising the contribution of existing kerbside recycling
collections.

Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy — A review of the strategy was
scheduled for 25 March 2011 and an update of progress would be forwarded to the
Board.

Use of re3 Facilities by West Berkshire Residents — The Board discussed the
response received from the Corporate Director of Environment at West Berkshire
regarding the outstanding amounts relating to use at the re3 facilities. The Board
decided on the following actions —

1 A letter from the Chairman would be sent to the Chief Executive and the
Leader of West Berkshire Council outlining the views of the Board.

2 Signs would be erected at Longshot Lane and Smallmead as soon after the 1
June 2011 as possible.

3 Officers would report back to the Board regarding gating options at both sites.

4 The Joint Waste Agreement would reflect the details of the terms for any
agreement entered into with another council who would wish to use the
recycling sites.

(Action: Mark Moon/Oliver Burt)

Issues regarding sub-contracts were also discussed by the Board and it was
suggested that investigation work be carried out on the matter. (Action: Oliver Burt)

Dates of Future Meetings

Due to officer availability the next meeting date was to be decided. The Board noted
the subsequent dates —

Tuesday 20 September 2011 — Bracknell Council Offices
Thursday 15 December 2011 — Reading Council Offices
Thursday 22 March 2012 — Wokingham Council Offices.

Workshop Dates

The workshop dates were to be decided.

Exclusion of Public and Press

RESOLVED that pursuant to Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to information) Regulations 2000 and having regarding to the
public interest, members of the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the
consideration of item 9 which involves the likely disclosure of exempt information
under the following category of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972:

3



33.

(3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person.

Risk Register

The Board received and noted a report containing exempt information relating to its
Risk Register.

Risk items 15a and 16 on Register were discussed and it was noted that on-going
work would be undertaken to address any future issues.

CHAIRMAN



TO:

1.1

21

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Agenda ltem 5

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
7™ July 2011

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD - PROJECT UPDATE
(Report by the Project Director)

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to inform the Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB) of
progress since its last meeting on 16th March 2011.

RECOMMENDATIONS
To note progress made since the last meeting on 16™ March 2011.

That Members approve option 2 (at 3.31 below) and instruct the re3 Project
Team to negotiate with the Contractor to effect the change.

That Members endorse the proposal described at 3.39 below and instruct the
re3 Project Team to develop the proposal further with the Contractor for future
approval by the JWDB

That Members approve the draft design of the entrance sign to the Household
Waste Recycling Centres as attached at Appendix 3.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Operations and Facilities

The Contractor is developing a business case for making some amendments to the
MRF. The amendments will be aimed at recovering recyclables from material
currently rejected.

The benefits from such a change would be in increased recycling and thus a
reduction in disposal cost. Increased recycling should lead to greater income for the
Contractor and potentially the councils.

The Contractor has suggested that the councils could contribute to the capital
expenditure for the project. Officers will supply details of the proposed amendments
and aspects of the business case as soon as they are available.

At the previous JWDB meeting, Members requested detail on the amount received
for trade waste through the contract. Officers can confirm that in the 2010/11 year the
amount of third party trade waste received at the sites was 39,400 tonnes and that
translated into a payment to the councils of £91,000.

Retail Outlet Replacement

Members have previously requested updates about the support for Sue Ryder which
the councils and contractor are providing via the Household Waste Recycling
Centre’s (HWRC's).

Sue Ryder Care is a charitable organisation which provides palliative and end-of-life
care. They are well established in and around the re3 area with beds at the Nettlebed
Hospice and management of services provided at the Duchess of Kent House
Hospice in Reading.

5



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Since the arrangement with them began in March 2011, Sue Ryder have been
collecting items set aside by contract staff and making them available for sale via
their network of charity shops in the region.

They estimate that, to date, the items retrieved from the re3 HWRC’s have raised as
much as £6,000 for Sue Ryder.

At the present time especially, this kind of arrangement is greatly appreciated by Sue
Ryder.

Community Repaint

At the previous JWDB Meeting, Members asked for more detail on the proposal by
Green Machine to establish a Community Repaint scheme for the re3 councils.

Green Machine is a Community Interest Company (CIC) set up by Bracknell Forest
Council.

There is a network of Community Repaint schemes operating across the UK. They
collect unwanted and surplus paint and redistribute it to individuals and communities
in need. In doing so, they seek to deliver economic, social and environmental
benefits.

Green Machine had prepared a proposal to work as a sub-contractor at the HWRC'’s.
Under the proposal, they would offer a saving on the high costs (c£280,000 pa) of
managing unwanted paint through our HWRC's.

The basis of their proposal was to divert, for community re-use across the re3 area,
40% of paint currently received at the sites for a payment equivalent to 30% of the
total annual cost. As a result, the councils should ultimately have been able to see a
saving equivalent to 10% of the total cost (c£28,000 pa).

Since developing that proposal however, the Contractor has proposed to process all
paint received at the HWRC'’s via a facility they own. Officers have no detail at
present but we are told the new arrangement will be as much as £100,000 cheaper
than the current total cost of paint processing.

If the reduced cost is realised, that would have implications to the Green Machine
proposal — reducing the value of the 30% they would expect to receive. It is as yet
unclear whether Green Machine would be able to operate the service for a reduced
payment (c£54,000 pa).

As such, Green Machine has proposed that they begin the Community Repaint
scheme and operate for 9 months (receiving at least two quarterly fixed payments). In
that time it is expected that detail will have emerged about the Contractor’s proposal
and discussions between them and Green Machine will have progressed to enable
both to operate alongside one-another.

Haulage Contract Re-let

Members have approved (JWDB 21% September 2010) the early commencement of
the Haulage Market Testing process contained within our Private Finance Initiative
(PFI) contract.

Since that decision the re3 Project Team have been working with the contractor in
order to follow the processes described within the contract for the market testing of
the haulage required and to seek to minimise any increase in costs.

6



3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

The process, as laid-out within the Contract, was not followed precisely ‘to the letter’
as it required adherence to some of the principles of the EU Procurement Regime (as
if the Contractor were a public body). As a result both parties have agreed to restart
the process.

It is still the intention of the Contractor that the new haulage arrangements
commence in December 2011 as intended. However, the Contractor is also
negotiating with the incumbent haulier about a short extension of the existing
arrangement in case there is a further unforeseen delay.

Savings Proposals

Council Officers have been engaged in discussions with colleagues from our PFI
Contractor, Waste Recycling Group (WRG), in relation to savings and income
generation.

The requirement to make savings across public services is clear. Officers have taken
their lead from the Cabinet Office and HM Treasury who are working with cross
departmental suppliers and ‘portfolio’ contractors to make savings within Public
Private Partnership (PPP) Contracts across Government. They are keen that local
authorities do the same.

Among proposals which have so far emerged from discussions with our PFI
contractor, are two which Members will wish to give consideration to. The two
proposals are described from 3.25 to 3.34 and 3.35 to 3.41 below.

The first proposal involves the provision within the PFI contract of resources for two
members of the staff to deliver the education and waste minimisation functions of the
contract. As a very broad description, their role includes running and maintaining the
educational facilities at Smallmead and Longshot Lane, visits to schools and the
coordination and production of both information/education material for service users
and some contractual documents.

In practice, the education and waste minimisation staff have often been engaged in
activities for the contractor in addition to those described above.

From the start of the contract until September 2010, the roles were carried-out most
ably by the appointed staff. Unfortunately, both individuals left the employment of
WRG at that point.

In light of the need to make savings, and at the suggestion of the re3 Project Team,
the contractor recruited one member of staff to replace those who had left in
September 2010. Unfortunately, that did not appear to work very well as the absence
of available support meant that the individual was constantly stretched.

When the replacement member of staff left in January 2011, it was agreed to delay
the recruitment of replacement staff while a review was conducted. This delay affords
the re3 councils an opportunity to consider the value of the service and its role in the
future of the re3 partnership.

At the commencement of the contract, £100,000 per annum was put aside from the
councils payments to fund education and waste minimisation activities. A further
£50,000 was put aside to fund staff costs for the two posts. Both sums are subject to
the application of RPI and in the current year amount to £121,600 and £60,800
respectively.

7



3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

3.39

3.40

There would appear to be three workable options, as described below.

1. Retain the service, including continuing to contribute full payment, as
described within the contract.

2. Retain the service broadly as described within the contract but seek to revise
the terms and conditions so that the staff were seconded (or similar) to the
councils rather than being separate from them. Alongside this change, the
councils could also renegotiate a reduced budget for activities, thereby
realising a saving alongside the retention of this service.

3. Realise the full saving of £182,400 (correct for 2011/12), whilst procuring on
an annual basis those reports and activities which the councils wish the
contractor still to deliver, and subsume the appropriate education and waste
minimisation activities within the existing complement of appropriate staff
across the three councils.

To effect a change, the contractor is likely to require the councils to submit a Notice
of Council Change according to the PFI Contract.

While the exact and specific benefit of the education and waste minimisation role is
impossible to quantify, it is widely believed (amongst officers) to have been valuable
to the three councils.

The re3 Project Team therefore recommend that Members approve option 2 (at 3.31
above) and furthermore that Members instruct them to enter into the necessary
negotiations with the Contractor, via a Notice of Council Change.

The second proposal is for a change to the opening hours of the two Household
Waste Recycling Centre’s at Smallmead in Reading and Longshot Lane in Bracknell.

At the request of the re3 Project Team, the Contractor has considered the potential
saving that might be made from reductions in opening hours at the HWRC'’s.

The savings proposed are as follows:

1. For closure of both sites for two hours per day during Summertime (6pm-8pm
daily between 1 April and 30 September): £38,000 per annum

2. For closure of both sites for one day per week (although not both on the same
day): £94,000 per annum

However, the re3 Project Team would like to propose an alternative to the outright
closure of the HWRC’s which we hope would be more consistent with the outlook of
the re3 councils and make a bigger contribution to the search for savings or income
generation.

The proposal would still see the HWRC'’s closed to householders for a part, or parts,
of the week. However, rather than the sites sitting idle, they could be opened-up for
local traders and SME’s who would pay a fee to recycle and dispose of their trade
waste.

This kind of proposal could have some advantages to all concerned. These could
include the following:



3.41

3.42

3.43

3.44

3.45

3.46

3.47

3.48

3.49

3.50

e Addressing the need, as previously identified by the re3 councils but now also
included in the recent Government Review of Waste Policy in England 2011,
to support local businesses through our facilities.

¢ Reduce some of the operational tension at the HWRC'’s between receiving
waste from traders and householders and help to ensure that council tax
payers are not footing the bill for trade waste.

¢ Provide the simple basis upon which to be open for business to traders who
are prepared to support our aim to recycle and recover as much as possible.

e Generate an income stream for the councils based on a charging scheme
which is reasonable for traders and easily administered — the aim being to
make it simple for small businesses.

e Provide another service area in which the councils and our Contractor can
collaborate.

The re3 Project Team therefore recommends that Members endorse the proposal
described at 3.39 above and that the re3 Project Team be instructed to develop the
proposal further with WRG for future approval by the JWDB.

The Contractor has been asked to assess the level of revenue received from the
councils in relation to both the Mini-MRF and Retail Outlet elements of the Contract
(referred to previously at 3.4 and 3.8 respectively) up to the point at which
replacements for those undertakings were in place.

Finance
The provisional financial position for 2010/11 is attached under Appendix 1.

The project is reporting a collective under spend of £777,000 for 2010/11; this is
lower than the £1.2million under spend reported at the last meeting.

Quarter 4 actual costs were higher than anticipated, primarily due to an increase in
contract waste in March, assumed to be related to the warm and dry weather.

However, the main factor in the reduction of the reported under spend is related to
the Councils’ share of the Contractor’s income from sales of recyclate.

As reported at the March meeting, the Contractor had advised that they were due to
significantly overachieve in terms of modelled income, and estimated the Councils’
share of the saving to be £362,500 for 2010/11. However, the Contractor has recently
advised that they have recalculated the Councils’ share of the income.

The Contractor’s revised calculation showed that there was no longer any share of
excess income due to the Councils. The re3 Project Team have scrutinised the
calculation and do not agree with several components and are currently in
discussions with the Contractor concerning this matter.

In order to be prudent, the 2010/11 outturn has been adjusted to reflect the worst
case scenario, which is that the Councils are not due any income.

On behalf of the Councils, the Chair of the JWDB and the Reading Borough Council
Chief Executive recently met with the Chief Executive of WRG to discuss savings
options and future aspirations for the Partnership. The Councils expressed their
desire to reach an agreement over the adoption of cost transparency arrangements.
The Councils feel that with greater transparency, the issue described in 3.47 above
could possibly have been avoided.

9



3.51

3.52

3.53

3.54

3.55

3.56

3.57

3.58

3.59

3.60

3.61

3.62

3.63

3.64

A statement of expenditure against the re3 Management budget is included under
Appendix 2 and shows an under spend of £52,500 for 2010/11.

Performance

Provisional 2010/11 performance results are detailed below. Note that these results
are subject to validation by Waste Data Flow.

Bracknell’s provisional NI 192 (percentage of waste recycled and composted) result
for 2010/11 is 40.2%. This is an improvement on the 2009/10 score of 37.8%.

77.6% of Bracknell's municipal waste was diverted from landfill in 2010/11, compared
to 55.5% in 2009/10.

Reading’s provisional NI 192 result for 2010/11 is 34.9%. This is an improvement on
the 2009/10 score of 33.4%.

71.4% of Reading’s municipal waste was diverted from landfill in 2010/11, compared
to 47.5% in 2009/10.

Wokingham’s provisional NI 192 result for 2010/11 is 41.1%. This is an improvement
on the 2009/10 score of 38.4%.

79.4% of Wokingham’s municipal waste was diverted from landfill in 2010/11,
compared to 55.4% in 2009/10.

The improvements in rates of diversion from landfill are largely due to full availability
of the Lakeside Energy from Waste facility in 2010/11; due to delayed commissioning
the facility was only partly available in 2009/10.

Use of re3 Facilities by West Berkshire Residents

Payment has now been received from West Berkshire, according to the agreed
methodology, for the 2008/09 and 2009/10 years.

West Berkshire paid £200,000 “on account” in 2010/11. A reconciliation process now
needs to be undertaken to establish the actual charge due for the period and the
appropriate reconciliation invoice will be raised.

Attached at Appendix 3 is a draft design for an entrance sign to the HWRCs. The
design shown is for Smallmead and therefore includes space for a removable sticker
depicting the West Berkshire logo. This is so that they and any other Council that we
form a reciprocal agreement with, can feature on the sign. For practical reasons it is
not proposed that the West Berkshire logo appears on the Longshot Lane sign, but
the same principle could apply.

Members are requested to approve the draft design at Appendix 3.

Risk Register

The Risk Register has been updated and will be considered at the appropriate point
in the agenda.

10



BACKGROUND PAPERS

Board Report 16" March 2011

CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

Mark Moon, Project Director
0118 974 6308
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk

Oliver Burt, Project Manager
0118 939 9990
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk

11



Appendix 1

2010/11 Waste PFI Outturn

re3 PFl Budget Monitoring

Apr-10
May-10
Jun-10

Jul-10
Aug-10
Sep-10
Oct-10
Nov-10
Dec-10
Jan-11
Feb-11
Mar-11

TOTAL

Business Rates

Insurance Saving

Income (note 9)
2010/11 Outturn

2010/11 Budget

Notes

Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual

EfW Adjustment (ote s
Waste Min Refund (note 7)

note 8)

Estimated Recyclate

Revised 2010/11 Budget

Projected Underspend

1. Based on actual invoices

2. Trade waste disposal included in RBC costs & budget.
6. The EfW Adjustment is a refund due to lower than anticipated residue, resulting in slightly lower gate fee.
during this period. (Qtr 4 2010/11 not yet available so will change slightly).

8. Insurance saving due to lower than modelled premium.

9. Annual Recylate Income Payment from WRG is now under discussion with WRG. Currently assuming worst case
scenario of noincome.

re3 Management Budget/Costs not included

BFBC RBC WBC TOTAL
£ £ £ £
497,336 685,025 772,635 1,954,996
481,157 602,854 713,664 1,797,675
485,946 684,446 739,851 1,910,243
484,102 635,306 709,172 1,828,580
441,736 621,984 728,334 1,792,054
461,383 742,234 733,559 1,937,176
452,156 601,809 681,821 1,735,786
451,693 618,326 685,887 1,755,906
409,348 591,746 637,932 1,639,026
463,491 664,797 727,283 1,855,571
426,565 547,284 612,292 1,586,141
490,098 682,678 738,721 1,911,497
5,545,011 7,678,489 8,481,151 21,704,651
106, 441 138,055 144,829 389,325
-6,929 -8,987 -9,428 -25,344
-32,194 -43,107 -44,699 -120,000
-18,393 -23,971 -26,224 -68,588
0 0 0 0
5,593,937 7,740,479 8,545,629 21,880,044
6,011,277 7,874,406 8,949,805 22,835,488
5,832,480 7,874,406 8,949,805 22,656,691
-238,543 -133,927 -404,176 776,647
-3.4%

2010/11 Budget v Actual & Forecast (Cumulative)

£21,000,000 -

£16,000,000 -

£11,000,000 -

£6,000,000 -

£1,000,000 LDJ—DJ H , , , , , , , , ,

W Actual
Budget
O Forecast




Appendix 2

JWDB - re3 Waste PFI Management Costs

2010/11 Period to 31 March 2011

Employees Budget YTD Cost | YTD Variance Comments
£ £ £

Salaries, NI & Super 166,800 145,206 -21,594

[Training 3,000 475 -2,525

JEmployees sub total 169,800 145,681 -24,119
Other Costs Budget Cost Variance Comments

[Transport

[Travel Expenses 1,000 566 -434

Supplies & Services

Equipment 3,500 0 -3,500

Stationery 500 28 -472

Consultancy Fees 134,548 117,375 -17,173

Purchase of Computer Equipment 6,700 800 -5,900

IMobile Phones 400 358 -42

Support Services/Recharges 20,900 20,000 -900

Other Costs sub total £167,548 £139,127 -£28,421

2009/10 Total £337,348 £284,808 -£52,540

Note: Eversheds invoices for legal advice regarding additional EfW are split equally between Reading & Wokingham.

Council Recharge 2010/11 £

Bracknell £70,856
Reading £107,126
Wokingham £106,826
Total £284,808

13



Appendix 3

No trade waste

This facility is provided under Section 51 of the Environmental Protection Act
(1990) and is for use only by residents of

‘.k? gﬁﬂﬂ C-Ol.lll:lgg 6 Hﬂ..ﬁaﬂgm

BRACKNELL FOREST
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Proof of residence may be requested

The Council reserves the right to refuse entry to anyone who does not meet the
above criteria

14



TO:

1.1

21

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Agenda ltem 6

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
7™ July 2011

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
REPORT ON AUDIT OF THE re3 JOINT WASTE PFI
(Report by the Project Director)
INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the result of the recent audit of the
re3 Joint Waste PFI.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To endorse the audit report relating to the re3 Joint Waste PFI (appended to
this report).

To approve the Management Responses, and associated actions, included
within the audit report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Audits Findings

The audit report concludes that there is substantial assurance as to the adequacy
and effectiveness of the control framework put in place by the re3 councils.

The audit makes 15 recommendations. There are no high priority recommendations.
Seven are medium priority and eight are low priority.

The re3 Management Team have responded to the audit recommendations and both
are included within the Management Action Plan section of the audit report (page 7).
Audit Process

A previous report on this matter (1% July 2010) highlighted how different approaches
across the three councils may have contributed to some issues which could make it

difficult to address audit recommendations across the partnership.

As a result, it was agreed that the PFI would, henceforth, be audited as follows:

1. The re3 joint waste PFI to be audited biennially, starting in 2011.

2. With both the council partnership and our ongoing contractual arrangements
with WRG in mind, each audit will look at:

Finance
Facilities
Governance

Relationships

15



3.6

3.7

3.8

3. Reading Borough Council to carry out audits (in its role as administering
authority) liaising with the Audit Teams at Bracknell Forest Borough Council
and Wokingham Borough Council as appropriate.

It was also specified that the Audit process be carried out in accordance with the
usual standards of such a procedure - Terms of Reference to be agreed in advance
and in liaison with appropriate officers at each of the three councils. The findings and
recommendations were to be reported to the JWDB in order that the adoption of
measures to address the recommendations, particularly those which relate to the
Joint Working Agreement between the re3 councils, could be agreed and addressed
fully at the partnership level.

In accordance with the above, the report is presented to Members for their
information and endorsement.

Members are asked to approve the responses and the associated actions in order
that the recommendations of the audit can be addressed.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Reports to JWDB (1 July and 21%' September 2010)

CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

Mark Moon, Project Director
0118 974 6308
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk

Oliver Burt, Project Manager
0118 939 9990
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk

16



Reading Borough Council
Internal Audit Services

Annual Audit Plan 2011/12

Re3 - Waste PFI Contract

Report No.03/11

Audit Assurance Substantial

Report Distribution List

Kévin Holyer
Steve Loudoun
Mark Moon

Joint Waste
Disposal Board

Head of Environment and Consumer Services
(RBC)

Chief Officer for Environment and Public
Protection (BFC)

Strategic Director Place Based Services (WDC) and

Project Director
Joint Waste Disposal Board members

T,
17 &y

Reading

BOROUGH GOUNGIL




Private & Confidential Internat Audit Report 03/11

Report Content:

- Executive Summary
¢ Introduction
s Objectives
e Audit Assurance
e Main Conclusions

- Management Action Plan

- Detailed Findings

Report Preparation

Report prepared by: Claire Armstrong & Kevin Parker
Audit Services
claire.armstrong@reading.gov.uk
(0118) 9372121

- Audit Managed by: Paul Harrington

Head of Audit & Risk Management
Paul.Harrington®@reading.gov.uk
(0118) 9372695

Date Issued: 23 June 2011

The assistance of staff at Re3 and WRG in providing help and hospitatity during
the audit is gratefully acknowledged.

4 0
For further information please contact Kevin Part«?r on (0118) 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential internal Audit Report 03/11

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

Re3 is the name given to the partnership between 3 Berkshire local authorities
(Bracknell Forest, Wokingham and Reading) and the Waste Recycling Group
Limited. The contract is funded as under the Private Finance Initiative scheme
for 25 years and is due to run until 2031. The scheme will cost the 3 councils
over £600m across the lifetime of the contract; however this is offset by a
contribution from central government in the form of PFI credits.

The key task of the partnership is to manage the waste from more than 160,000
households across the three boroughs against the backdrop of increasing
government targets for the recycling of waste. Whilst each borough is
responsible for the collection of waste, the subsequent disposal of waste is
processed initially through either of two new facilities, Smallmead or Longshot
Lane

Responsibility for the day to day administration of the scheme is maintained by
a small team of RBC officers based at Smallmead and who are supervised by a
Management Team of senior officers from each of the constituent boroughs,
and in particular the Project Director. In turn, supervision and governance
arrangements are overseen by the Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB), which is
comprised of two councitlors from each of the member authorities. Ultimately
it is the JWDB that is responsible to the constituent authorities for the
management and delivery of the Re3 project. The administrative and
governance arrangements for Re3 are set out in a Joint Working Agreement
(JWA).

The review of Waste PFl Contract is undertaken as part of the programmed

work specified in the 2011/12 Interpal Audit Plan for the 3 boroughs in the Re3
partnership.

Objectives

The objectives of the audit review are fully detailed in the Terms of Reference
as agreed by all partners.

Overall Audit Assurance

Based on the findings in this audit, there is Substantial assurance that Internal
Audit can place reliance on the current adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control framework within Waste PFI Contract. Definitions of the audit
assurance levels are provided in Appendix A.

4 O

For further information please contact Kel\f% Parker on {0118) 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121 ‘




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Main Conclusions

Finance

Pay mechanisms are well documented within the contract and joint working
agreement. However variations to these are in place on three charges.

Although there is a shared acceptance as to the fairness and appropriateness of
these variations they are yet to be formally agreed by all partners.

Audit testing found a robust payment request checking process with
appropriate levels of separation of duties within these tasks. Some minor areas
of improvement have been identified, the majority of which relate to payment
recording effecting the Administering Authority only. There is regular
reconcitiation of income and expenditure leading into partnership budget
monitoring reports.

There continues to be a disagreement with West Berkshire County Council in
relation to the charge based on actual usage reported in the annual user
surveys. Whilst alternative options continue to be discussed at Board level
there still remains an outstanding settlement spanning several years.

Facilities

Maintenance schedules and service records were supplied that support both
planned and reactive maintenance. Records appear complete and well
managed. Operating manuals were supplied and it was noted that these
continue to be at draft.

It is Audits belief that there are adequate controls that discharge health and
safety obligations. Required documentation was found to be current and
appropriately displayed and likewise records support regular risk assessments
and appropriate training of personnel.

Incidents of reported accidents are recorded and reported to the Management
Team and where necessary an investigation is undertaken. Evidence was noted
where this resulted in a revised risk assessment,

Business continuity requires the greatest undertaking to develop agreed plans
and actions. There has been some very recent moves towards formalising
controls to secure contingency third party contractors should the need arise,
however this is just the tip of the iceberg. A co-ordinated approach is required
to identify possible scenarios that may significantly impact on the service
including lack of availability of all types of resources required to provide the
service and that would satisfy all partner standards. Although actual incidents
have been experienced the ‘essons learned' have not been documented nor
formalised.

The 2011-12 Re3 Project service plan brings together the three councils,
strategically broad, service plans. The workshop which took place during
October of 2010 aimed to get service and political direction and this has gone

N

zU
For further information please contact Kevin Parker on {(0118) 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential _ Internal Audit Report 03/11

some way to bring some specific focus into the plan. An increased level of
Officer and Member input may be required to retain client driven direction.

Governance

From meetings and correspondence with a number of personnel there appears
to be a detailed knowledge and understanding of roles and responsibitities
across the partnership with a shared desire to achieve a mutually respected
working relationship. However, the informal groups whilst active may benefit
from a more formal arrangement to encourage joint ownership and empowered
strategic thinking.

The Management Team has a number of controls in place to aid continuous
management of the contract on a short term/planned absence basis but some
do require review and up dating. A business continuity plan for the unplanned
continuation of the Management Team role would further improve the
robustness of the existing control framework. Clearly there is a significant
amount of implicit knowledge gained through experience of key officers,
specifically the Project Manager and the Project Director and this should also
~ be reflected in the business continuity arrangements.

The structure of the partnership has been adapted to ensure that appropriate
staff of all levels have the opportunity to in put into the mechanisms that
inform the decision making process. This is with the exception of Chief
Executive Officers. It is understood that negotiations are in place to further
investigate the possibility of this. Given the current economic situation, this
could provide the opportunity for high level strategic discussions and
negotiations at this level. The main conduit throughout the whole structure of
the partnership is the Project Manager and Project Director.

Due to the Management Team's diligence in checking and verifying the
suggested outcome. of the retendering methodology of the haulage contract,
concerns were identified that raised doubt over the robustness of the
exercise. The significance of a less than transparent process and risks to the
partnership relationship and to the Council are momentous. Issues have been
resolved by way of executing another tender process.

It appears there is a lack of expected risk management documented
responsibilities and documentation, this casts some doubt as to the level of
embedment of risk management within the partnership. There are certainly
some expected controls in place such as operational policies, quality reporting,
regular auditing of the internal control framework and the maintenance of a
partnership risk register which contains a variety of type of risks detailing
actions and allocating risk owners, it is difficult to accept that without
focussed and clear strategic objectives that all risks including up and coming
events are identified. There are some actions, such as the CEQ input and
strategy workshop, that are attempting to bring out a clear strategic direction
which once agreed should feed into the risk management process.

n4

For further information please contact Ke%ir% Parker on (0118) 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Only high and medium risks are reported to the Board, therefore it is only the
Management Team that is aware of all risks.

Contract Monitoring

Currently there are two ways the Re3 partnership monitors and measures
performance. The first is through the Performance Mechanism, whereby the
contractor reports on outputs against specific service measurements defined in
the contract, and the second is through the contract monitoring programme(s)
that have been initiated over the last year. '

In relation to the Performance Mechanism, a sample of the service standards
was tested, and generally the contractor was able to provide the necessary
information to support the reported outcomes. Furthermore, it was apparent
there was a good level of knowledge of the contract requirements amongst the
contractor’s staff team, and that the systems in place to measure and report
on performance were generally both accurate and robust. However specific
recommendations are made in the report to improve the reliability of these
records further. In particular systems used to measure turnaround times and to
record the reason(s) for failure(s) appear to have weaknesses and these need to
be investigated further, and the format of the Site Diary (for both sites)
although appearing appropriate needs to be investigated further to make sure
it meets the requirements laid down in the contract.

A significant development for the Re3 partnership has been the appointment of

- a Contract Monitoring Officer in 2010. In this time the officer has established a
framework for a more proactive focused approach to the monitoring of the
contract. The work done thus far has been sound but Re3 need now to develop
this further to make it more appropriate to its business needs and to reflect
the partnership’s principal objectives, as well as its principal risks. The Project
Manager recognises this and believes the time is now right to undertake this
review, building on experiences so far, as well as drawing on comments and
recommendations arising from this audit review.

Performance standards were assessed as being tightly prescribed, and generally
well understood by the principal parties on both the client and contractor’s
sides. These were generally up to date and relevant to the 3 boroughs’
corporate priorities in relation to waste and recycling. Prior to the appointment
of the Contract Monitoring Officer however, monitoring of the contractor was
generally reactive in focus, and dependent on performance monitoring
information supplied by the contractor. Now an opportunity to develop a
proactive approach to contract monitoring exists, and to build on the positive
work undertaken in the last year and a number of specific recommendations
are made in the report about how this should be done.

laYa)
For further information please contact Kevin Parieér on {0118} 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Management Action Plan

Our recommendations are set out in the following management action plan. We

“have assigned priority ranking to each of them to reflect the degree of risk to
which the Authority is exposed, and hence the urgency with which the actions
should be taken. The categorisation of recommendations is shown in Table 1.

[n summary, of the 15 recommendations raised in this report, none have been
categorised as Priority 1, 7 as Priority 2, whilst the remaining recommendations
have been categorised as Priority 3.

In relation to the principal component areas, the recommendations are
anatysed as follows:

Topic

Finance

Facilities 3 -
Governance 1 2
Monitoring 3

Table 1 Recommendation Categorisation

Priority 1 (High): A fundamental system weakness, which
presents material risk and required urgent attention by
management.

Priority 2 (Medium): A significant weakness, whose impact or
frequency presents an unacceptable risk to objective, which
should be addressed by management.

Priority 3 (Low): The system objectives are not exposed to
any significant risk, but the recommendation merits attention.

nNn

For further information please contact Keﬁih)Parker on (0118) 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




LZ1ZLE6 (8110) UO BUOLISLLIY BJ1RTD 1O p69TLE6 (8110) UO IaxIed UIASY 1503U0D 35ES]d UOIIRLLICUL 341Ny 104

ZL/LL0Z Jo pus
ay1 Aq passalppe
aq M 3Nsst sIYd

1uaAR 23e7

*$9A1103[q0 S11 SPARMO] SUDJIOM
2Je pue ueld soiadas ajeudosdde ue
padojaasp aAey weaj 1dalold [4d YL

‘sjenuew SUllsIXa au1 01 Suiplodoe
pauiejulew  pue  pojelade oue
$al3l|loe) pue puey UL S| UQKIENILS 18l
‘Melp, se ulewad Asayy ‘sudsuidul
UolIdNAISUOY)  pue  J03DBRIUCT) )
LUaamiaq andsip B 01 ang “saillioey
a2y} Jo Buluado eyl 3ouls asn Ul usaq
2ARY ‘lolreNIU0) ByY) AQ pauleiulew
pue play ‘sjenueywy  Bupelado ey

‘PapMdUL 39 N)IM as3L)
Uayy “uswAed aie) 03 anp AlLoyiny
suuslulWIpY a3yl Ag )94 Jou aue
$1S02 2NPpUN 1BY] 34NSUD 07 $3Insealu
3U3 INoge JUSLWSBIBE UL Bte §)IDUNod
2yl J "Bunesw Ixsu s) e (gamrn)
pleog esodsiq 91sepm  Wlor 2
01 pajussald Sulaq aJe syuswpuaue
Judweady  Jupopm  Julor eyl

"Msid B Se adUeulaa0d
Jood, j0 uonesneas 2yl aredIpUL
pastes senssi syl jey} 199} jou op
M “1PAY S1Y3 104 S2UDIDISY JO SWIB]
3yl ulymum  pasn  ASoyoulwlisy oyl
BUIBPIIMOLYDE  ISILUM  “pauleluieul
aJe Sjuswnoop AL Uowym
ul 3oeJqluod |4d =yl jo sesue JelaAas
01 SJ3J3l  UollepulwWwodlsl |y

SDUBUISAOD) J00d

Atloyiny

peaT 3yl uo usping jetoleury
28ua1RYD 1889

€ AuoLg

ueid AUALIBP 9DIAIBS e
sjenuew sunjeladp e
‘spuswAed a1 Joy Ayeuad
2 Sulpn)dul 0} UBALS 3 Os)e
DINOYS UOLIBISPISUOD ‘JUSWaaIBY
SUDIOM WUILOT 343 0] SUOLIBLIBA

0] pajuL Jou
NG ‘sepmoul syt Apdwoud palajdwod
2q pINoYs SIUSWNIoP A3 JO UCIIESL|EULIO ]

3|

L1L/€0 Hodsy upny Jeulaiy)

1BIIUSPLLOD B 93RALId

24



1ZLTLE6 (8110} UO BUOSULY 2[R1D 10 $69Z/E6 (8110) UO Jaxied ULASY 10RIUCD S5B3]d UOIIRWLIONIL 341Ny S04

‘Wwa)shs siolLpatd
3Y3 UL pa1da)jal 2g ued suawhed moy
MBADL TIIM S0 ULBWISS PINOYS SWY3
1921 9M pue ‘1IRIUOT {dd SUI YIm
adueplosoe ul ‘Appinb spew agq 03
JawAed saIgRUS SAYHD AQ JusWAe4

apod
2|2ei() 3Y3 01 SpuNy 21eJ0]|R 0] Wea}
5101lpaJ7) SY3 01 S210AUL Y] Buissed -

T | pauueds ag ued 3oloAuL pled a4l yowym
U_M FU\ :ﬂmm_ ‘paeog jesodsiq m. 01 Joplo aseyound jenuue ue Busiey - ey
SISBM 1UICT 2yl 0] Os|e pue Ajployjne = 103 panwiL
y>e2 1B SIUBIUNOIDY 3yl 031 suodal w 10U 1Ng ‘01 USALS 3¢ PINOYS UOLIBISPISUOD
gupioyiuow  128png UL pajos)ial ng ‘enssi ewaiul ue Ajedund st sy
Os|e ale pue 9dBRY) UL paplodal Aouatedsuen jo e e "WIDISAS SI01LP3LD UL UL Pa1231)2d 2de £3Y
ale apeul sjuawihed “Asuaiedsuer) Jo wa3sAs 01 apew sjuawded jeyy saunsua AjLoyny
IR B SI 243Y1 Jeyl 2248k 10U Op ap | SJ03PaID 34l uC pisy Biep S13)dwodu] e SULISISIULWPY 28Ul 1BY] papusaLluwicedad sL
e1ep adeuuo) Ajddns s1o1driuod
Added piyl alsym paysligeiss
-pa1sa) ¥ S1e $104JU0D UOLIBILLISA o
SRPpSWU] | g1 adfy 21sem  Yoes JRYY  BUNSUD 9 {Aieak; Aauow -
03 ssa00.1d U} JO JUDWI)2 J2Y) MIIASI = 9) awn yo poliad paz.se
w UR I2A0 215eM JO sadA) 112 J4SA0D

NIM - am INg N0 patied  Apeade
2Je  sojdwes U0 SI3YD  wopury

‘pasudy

1sanbad Juswied jo
AJBINDOR 3Y3 USA0 2IURINSSE paonpay

sadAl a1sem JO HaYD a1dwies e

1s52U2121dWoD 104 1BY3 PapUSWIWODI St 3|

Uol1epuUatlonay

L1/€0 1ioday 11PNy Jeulaiu)

JelUSpLUOD B

21BALId

25



LZLTLEG (8110} UO BuoIISWLY 31LB)D IO $69ZLE6 (8110) UO Ioxiegd ULASY 12€IUCD 3Seald uoljewWIoUL 18U3Iny 104

TL/1102
10 pua Aq
ueld AunuILOD
ssaulsng
40 uondopy

‘diysisulted £aJ Y3 ssoude
4e1s  Aununuod  ssaulshgy/Buluue)d
AuaBlawg o1eLidoadde
woll 32lApe  Bupel gamr oyl Aq
pamalasd Ajpuanbasgns pue pasosdde
aq pnoys ueld ayr  ABulim
sunjeladood s1 Jo3oeajuod 2yl -ued
Jewlc) e ojul ‘Buipueising BupiAue
pue ‘sjuswad  Bullslxe Ayl e
19Yy33803 Bulig 03 J9pJo UL JOIDBIIUOD
34} UM suolssnoslp palenlul
aABl Weaj 129fodd £a4 9yl ‘sjidunod
aul JO  JIBYsg U0 ‘ss3joyUSASN

*1012B1IU0D 8U3 JO SWSISAS 1eulaIuUl
syl AQq 10 Nasil PRIUOD 3Y) EBlA
passalppe Apealie Sl ueld AlLNUuOD
ssaulsng e jo juswaiinbal jeuonelado
9yl JO yYonuw ‘yons sy I01IRIIU0D
3Yyr 01 WP 9yl wodp ‘Apeapl
‘pPaddaajsuedl stoysL 1By 10rIu0d A8
ddd/14d e jo sasodind ayj Jo 2uo st ]

‘pas.By

SSO) jelouRULY
I1AI95 10 AIhuLIuoD JO yoE

Z fAuotg

"3]BINDDR pUE 3)ep

03 dn 8¢ pINoyYs 353y} pue pajuawnIop
aq pjnoys sassaoud,/sainpadoud )y
"sjuaWaJinbaa Jauaed e saushes

¥ey) ueld e SusiqeIss Ul aeyloey
pUE plB 03 224N0S / 18211J0 ANNUIIUDYD)
ssauisng pasafe ue yum play 2q
SUCISSNISIP 1BY] PapUSWIWOoDal Os|e st 3

‘uejd J1891e11S pIsSNI0) B JO S9AL1D3[Qo
2y} 03 payul} aJe pue ueyd A3INULuoD
paaJde ue Bunuawalduwy Joj uodn patiald
$J012E4U0D PUE SIDIAISS (B YIim aded
UL 34 PINCYS SIUSWSSURLIE JBLULIOS ~MIIA
10 Uod (weal) Juswedeurw 310B1U0D
pue (J10312eJ43U0D) suolielado ue yioq
W0} Payshge1ss ag suejd A3NULIUCD
SSULSNG JBY] PapPUSWIWOI3I SL 1

¥y

. UCHEpUBWIWOI®Y . -

L1/€0 Moday Upny Jeusaiy|

1e13USPYUOD B S3BAL

26



LZLZLE6 (8110) U0 BUOIISWLIY 118D JO-H697/E6 (8110) UO 1¥aed UIASY 19BIUCD SseR1d UOIJeWIoUL JSYLINS 10

“eaoidde
10) GAMIr 241 0] spew aq usiy)
1M sjesodoly 3L ssaippe 0] Aem 1saq syuSWasueLIe
e ssusng o1 v
: : : : sa18a1e0)s SuLIojUOW
521U0D [4d PAIRYS S _ SoueuLIOMad WIOUL O YUY
10y ssanoid Juswaindold ay) ysnoayy 101USS puE SISqUBW Aq nw%www%
P23RNSUOWIP UII] ‘aI0jaU9Y] ‘DARY _ .:mwn sey Uawym ued J18a7e.3s
diysuoriejad e yons Joy SUOLILPUCD 3SSM190L © 01 DSYUH 11930 .
Aressasau ay] ~diysiasuiied ¢al ay) P 38 03 il Anvedid
JO uolyeald ay3 Joy uosead jedioursd - Joupred-rnw pe m_\_m_ﬁw_n_ww:ﬂm
L7107 a1 sem HsLl 01 Yaroidde sa1031102 = SuIS ' _.m n ; P
10 pus Ag ® JO 1149U3q pue ‘saljlioyine =1 HISBUBUL "SURBaL Jo SPOlNSW ¢ Gy
SuLINOQUSIaU usam1aq Joddns < SPOISW
JUSIALUL BY ] “S)IPUN0D Jaunied X} uoleauuUapl Ajluntioddo/ieady e
ay) usamiaq sumueid s15arens olijedde sl psaisy e
10 23189p U1 01 a5ueYD & aunbaJ M 18uu0s.tad A2y “sysLi BulBeuel
(SpUBLIBp DISB1RIIS 1310 SPISSUOIE) doy Auanaas ‘sseooud juswaseurw
A1) UCLIRPUBLILLIODS 3Y] SSSIPPR O YSH 813 Jo JUMmo isaLafiqisuodsal
pUR $3]01 pajuswinlog e
‘ssano.d Jeyy 03 fonod ysu paaiBe Uy e
uonlippe nid|ay B sL UoLIepUSLILLIODS
SIYL "JUSWNDOP SUIAJOAD UE U3¢ POBEUBL JOU BJE SYSIY  » 13pN)DWH PINOYS YI0MSWEL) 3U | Passhioy
sey J91st8au ySI £31 33 ‘sIa20 afewep jealljod pue jeuoijenday e DA113[qO pUR 1SNGO 210W 31 e
pue siaquay wouy Indul Y DAIDS 0] PoMaLAR) 2 Jomawel) Juswaseuew
SY] Uo Joedul} SJUDAS UDISBIOUN @ DSL BY3 JBY) PSpUSLILIODA SL Y|
‘a1dbund ul paaugy &
PETITIRES

L 1/€0 Hoday pny jeusaiy| . 1RHUSPHUOD B S1BALH

27




LZLZLE6 {8110) Uo BuolIsuy a41R)D JC 697756 (8110) U0 Jaydey UlASY 158IU0D asea)d uoliewIoul tlayuny o4

“Jpny 25uls
pajuswaidu)

*1012e.1U0D
8Ul UMM  paslel  aJe  SWISUOD
8umnsal Aue pue palsay st saunsy
punoieu.ny pajiodal jo Adedndoe ay|

*S3[1LAIIDR BULIOIUCU JUSLD
Aq paljiuspl saouedsadsip BULMONIOL
pas4fe usaq Apeadie pey “i01DEIIUOD
syl AQ pasn ewdlly SWainseall
pue ‘waisAs ulyrodal ayy 03 saduey)

‘sassauyeam Jeuolielado Jo aiemeun

3Q pINo2 jusWadeueR (JUSLD) eyl

ysu jeualod e st asay) ‘aoueulopiad Jo
Buliodal pue FULICIUOW 23RAND3E 3] 104
soe)d Ul SWaIsAS 21qRLRU 2 24DY] SSUn

7 Auond

A1essadau atueyd
wia3sAs Aue Bunjew Aq palpswal
§1 10J3UOD UL SSAUYBIM D] 24NSUD
pInoys ‘1awiio) 2y} i ‘puR 101D
URLNY JO SIS RIM WDISAS
03} NP SBM SIUY JaIDUM AjJuaptL e
{mou pue uayl) paliodad auam
SINSJ JUSIDP AUM ULWIDISP e

:pinoys ay Jejnoined ul “0LoZ Hdy

404 paodad se sadnsy uIniINge puneJewsny
ay] Jo 12adsal ui s1Nsat uinng

3] 10} suoseal o) sa1eBiIsaAlL Jodeuey
108[04d £2Y 9Y1 1eY3 papuUSLLILIODal St )

£y

LLOZ AInr

‘S1aqIay

01 sjesodold ayew pue ‘sainssaud
28ue> Jeuonjesiueslo pue Aleysspng
Buljleaald Jo IX2JU0D BYI UM
‘suo11do ayl MaLABI |11M SHOUNOD 3y |

* Aigeauncooe

30 Y2ET, B U0 90UBUISAOL) 1004,
Jauyits AJ1juapt Jou op AJulellad pue
MUo1IDaltp 218314315 JO yDeT, B 15288ns
J0U Op A3 1BY] PUSIUCD PINOM

SM “IDAIMOH “POLaPISUOD B JsnwW
PaLJLIUSPL $8NssL a1 Jeyy paadge sl ]

AllgeIunoade Jo yoeq
2UBUISA0S J100d
UoLI>ULP D18918JIS JO YoET

7 Alouid

"Supjulyl o18a7eas palamodulas pur
diysiaumo jurol a5einodus 03 sdnoJs
Jewoul, sy Jo sannigisuodsal
pue s2104 3y} BUISl|BWIO] e
‘WJal Suo) pue wnipaw
341 UL 198png palesoe syl JO Mataal
ay1 pue diysaaulied syl jo swie ay3
01 22IAI3S UOLIEDNPS 315BM dA1IR0Id
e Suiptaodd 10U Jo ppedwil sy e
:BUMOT0)
a1 JSpISUod pJeog suj puswiLonal Jlphy

9d

- UoijepUswwioday . . .

| 589

L1/€0 1oday 1pny jeulaiu)

1eIUSPLLOD B 91BALL

28



LZLZLEG (8110) UO BUOLISWLYY S41R)) IO $697/56 (§11.0) UO JaMJBd UIASY 10R1U0D 3seald UOIBULIOfUL Jayling 10

.

"22URPING y3 JuUa.1ind
aUl yum uendwod aq 01 passneq
pue pamala A3usnbasgns alem saLlelp
aUs ylog -‘papiacid sem  suolsnpul

PNy 2oUis 1eI2Us8 Jo I8 Yy CAdelp 2us ayd *(s}psepuels %
pajuswidw] | Ut papmpul g pinoys jeym Ajoexs p=1eindils 2yl yum juenduiod 3, /1805 UM 2oUBpICIDRB UL | Y
a1endils jou seop swidas Buuled 3¢ jou Aew Arelq 8315 Jua1nd < | AousBy JUSWUOIIAUT BY) JO SjusWILnbal
usLnNd 3yl eyl popwold  sem auyy 1.yl st B s1 a4aY] ‘ale Lousdy “ s18aW Adelq 9IS ay3 Jo U0
UOLIBLLLIOJUOD PUR Y3 3yl pajdeiucd JUSLWUOIIAUT 3Y] JO suawaanbal pue Jewo) 2y 18yl 24NsuUa pPINoys
SI9DLJO  "PossaJppe uSaq Sey sy Y1 JBUM UMOUY St ] SSaUn e JaBeuey 1aloid pue Jadeuey jeiauso Sy
-Aessadau
L S)I2UNoD Byl UYim  pauisnb
ale pue siseq AYjuow B uQ payIayd
Ajuains  aae Joday  SouBWIOLIRd -
"HpNY 30UlS Uyl UL PoISH SaJNtRl  punoJdeusny 2
pajuswadw) | ayl ‘uayelspun uaaq 2AeYy = gy
ainjle) punoleuin) B Jo) Uoseal au) < *191)ealay) paiolluol pue wea) 10aloid
109195 ued Jjei1s SBpLIqUBIoM Ydym "admle) punodeuny “ | ay3 Aq paause ale aunie) punoJeu.n) e Jo)
Wwouy) suonndo umop-dop ayy Sulplesad e 10J (Sjuosesad oyl pio3ald 0] pasn SUOSEaJ ay) pJodad pue AJ1IUSpl 0] pash
SUOISSNDSL] "PassaJppe u2aq sey SWl 2q pIno> uonduIdsap 1D30JUL LY e (sa)ssaoc.d ay3 Jey) papuallwIoDal S| ]|
SR _ “TON
 Uonepustiioosy 398

L1/€0 Hoday 3pny JeuJaiu)

JBLIUSPYUOD B 1AL

29



LZLTLE6 (8110} UO SUOIISULY 3U1R]D JO p69T/E6 (8110) UO Jed UIASY 1DR3U0D 85ea)d UOIRLLIOJUL J3Y}ny 404

"damr 2yl Aq

pasiopus Ajjewlo) uay) pue wea] 1daf{oid
ayl Aq pomalaad pue passnasip Sk Jey)
papuawLLodal st il ‘Uadeuey 30alold ayl

usuisdeuell Aq pamalral uasq sey syl aduQ BulpAzal
10BAU0D 10 awdolaaap - / &15em 03 uogre)ad UL saijuiold a1edoduod
7L/ 1107 alniny ayy 01 S9INQLIIUOD = S1DUNOD JUSNILISHOD U] SE 118M Se
10 pua Ag UOL}RPUSLILIODA] Syl {anoqe) . ‘sysid yeduud sdiysiaulred ayz s1o9y48d | 0Ly
Gy pue Yy opisBuoje pue (moBq) < ASa1ea3s pue swweldoid uriojiuow
Gl 2andelgo 18 padpamowde s sy ™ IDRIUOD BY3 1BY) PAPUSLUILIOIR
S1 1l ‘12A0SI0W "SSSSIUMBIM PUB SUISUSUIS
*1011UoW £%4s1) Aoy pajuswinzop DA11B)24 511 UG 1331424 03 pado)aaap
0} pedu syl Yum Sulp uL speu sdwstouiied ay3 pue 1desUed Aneniut sey 31 Aaqea3s pue awwelsoud
ussq Sey 1ey: SBulOUUOW IDRIIUOD 8] Jolluow 01 ade|d ut ASaleals SuLIcIuOW 1ORIIUOD ST SMaLASY
uo ssausold auy sosiudonal yupne syl SuLIojUOW 3Y) US9MIS] S22USISLI] wes] 102[0.4d 9yl papuswiwosal 51y
. R TON
S VENEY.EE .. holjepusuiionsy. . - P

LL/€0 Hoday 1phy jewlaiu)

JELIUSPHUOY) B S)RALI]

30



LZLZZ€6 (8110) uo uosuLy alLe) 10 $697/56 (81 10) UG Jayied ulAsY JDBIUOD mwmmﬁ uolleuliojul Jeyling 104

1107 41290130

‘ajeudordde
sl 31 adeym  sansst  pendsip
10 paajosasun Supuswniop Ul asn
10} asuapiae olydeaoloyd jo asn ay3
Jopisuos M weal 1afoad gau ayy

aoueliogiad

10 s8nss| paldodad AjuloA

03 Suldua)ieyd A)RU0ISEII0 3q ARt
U ‘@ouaplad oiydesdoloyd INOUILM

£ AuioLid

*A1LALIIS® BuLiojluow

JDBIIUOD 0] UokIE|ad Ul Aenoyled
‘ayeudoadde siaym ‘sydeaSojoyd jo asn
a3 Joplsuod pinoys weal 1dafoad cay ayy

[4%-!

*10}2e4Juc> pue
(s11oUnos) JusLD
uasmlaqg ssaooud
3ulo8uo ue
allnbal osie M
UCLIRPUSWILLIODS
s1y) Butssalppe
1eU] 193) 9M

“Upny oouls
paiuswaiduw)

*aanbau

SIUaWIdOI2ASP pUR SSIURISLLINIILD

SE 3NuLIUo3 01 195 St andojelp eyl
‘(359404 J19uWydRIg pue WeySUIomM

10 5,X) 241 Bujuasatdal) Buipeay

40 SALINDAXT JAIYD 23 pue gqmr

SY3 Jo Jtey)d auyy Yioq pue sAnniaxy
391UD SIOIDBLIU0D Y] UdIMID]
Sulesw s18eeals B AQ pajuawa)ddns
usaq sey jeyl ‘ipne sy

92ULS °S103234L] JO pAROg ,S.I01DRIUCD
T QU1 4O Siaquisw Ym ansojelp

€ paulelulell dABY S)1IUN0D 8y
‘sassanoud Jenjoesjuod sy apisSuoly
‘ucnosal ulastyde ul uetiodwi
aJe sdiysuolie|ad 1.y 193} SIS0

"PaARLYDR 3Q URd UolIN)osad

Uom Ag swisiueydsw ureiued

O5]e S80P 12BIIU0Y) [44 8yl ‘{1oaiay)
3e] J0) Way) suissaippe Ut ssauSoud
pJodal 03 sduljaaul Juanhasqns

Jo} pue papiedal 2q 0] s3nsst
1eniseliuod Joj aoeld arevidoudde
31 sutew s Buliasy 1DRIIUOD 3l

“Juawasosduil aouewomad ButALp

ul pue ‘@say} Jo UoLIN|0SaI UL sAelep
01 pea] pined AjAloe SuLlolucw
12BIU0D Wou) BulsLIe sansst

BulAj0s2J pue SulMaLASI JO) 2unpadodd
pos1Ge pue Jes)d e Jo yoe) sy

7 MuoLd

‘wnioy} 93eudosdde aaljeulalje
ue jje 1e Jo ‘saAlejussaudad
SpLS JUS1)2 pUR JG1DBIILOD
aU3 uasmiaq ssuizssw Ajyjuow
3Y) 1B YJom BuLio]iuow 12eIuod
wiod) Bulsiie sansst dy1oads Sulsiel e
_ pue {paiddns
g pinoys sasuodsal Yaiym
uym pouiad 3198183 e pue oYM
UIYILMm JDBIUOD uostel] e AJads
PINOS si3 Alqeda)ald AllALDe
SuLiojtuow 30e.nU02 JRads
wiol} SulsUe UOLBLIIOUL IC)
si1sanbal pue suorsanb Sujajosal e

1404} pJeog Jesodsiq 231sem
UIOf 8Y) pue DYM Ylm pasude Ajjew.ioy
5L aanpa20.d & 1BY3 papuawWiLIODal S|

Y

liolepusWuIodsy -

L1/£0 310day Upny Jeulsiug

1_I3USPYUOD B SYeALd

31



LZLTLE6 (8110) UO SuoaIsWY 34e)) 10 F69TLE6 (81 1L0) UO JdMIed UIASY 10RIUOD dsea)d UoLIBWLIOJUL JBY3INY J04

"Yy43C AQ uSHRLISpUN 315EM JO
MBLASI JUSD31 Y] WOl syuswadinbay
1o aoueping ajeudoudde ul-plng 03

‘pdrog 102044

7L/ 1107 1NJash aq J1tm 1 3Byl 1921 OS1E SI22110 % ayy Aq endoadde se payyiiel aq pjnoys
Jo pusa Ag ‘('01y =9%) ‘aseyd  Suniojuow “PRNU0D 3. siyl “{s}reak ayy 1oy A1lalde pauueld | #1Y
Penuod jeruE 3yl o uonasjdwos 32 U0 SN20J 10 95RISA0D USASUN =) 40 a1nNpayos 10 swiessoad e sojtdwos
Jeye  edeid SRl M YOIYMm 03 pea) pINos ANALIOE BULIOHUOLL ! 182140 BULIOIUOW 1D8.13U0D 3y Jeyd
MILABL 34l BUIMONO) wea] 1d9loud 13e11U03 Jo swwelSold paulwiaisp papuauwnLosal s 1l ‘Aajenis SuLiojuow
€24 3yl Jo uoLudWL Yl SL SWI -9.d pue psuyap-sid e Jo yde YL e J2RIIUOD BUY JO MBLARJ BY] JO Lied sy
DAL paleys s wes] 1pafold sy
L0 UCH|SE) JU2I3Y02 & U] paulejal
pue paly S| UoRWICJUI ST .
‘Wweal 8yl JO SIagUIALL I2UI0 Jo) iA1essanaul 4| 01 ypeq
e ey e e e y | pouas g e e pue
S1e1patLi] chE.:wow mmw_: 1 .cmwmumucmvgw wmm m. SONSS] J0 SIUSPIAS BPIAOAT PINOYS 1y
: . = SiY3 se ‘pouad 1ey) do) Ajaipe
UdALE sasuodsal ‘payse suolsanb Aue <
w | BuLojluow ||e jo pJodad aL] suielal

10 pJodas 11Ny B apmpul yoym (3ndino
SDIAU3S YDe3 o) Buo) sjusawndop
Piop 01 oeq  syul] 199yspeadds
syl cpouad  Buuojow  1oBJIMUOD
1eLiuL SU3 JO SAWOIING Sy ISLeWILLNS
03 paonpoldd usaq sey jaayspealds y

[leny ypne jusuewad e jo yoet

19010 BULIOYIUO VeRUo) 3Y)

1eL) papustuwodal
S 31 ‘UCHEIUBLUNDOD BULIOYUOL JDEU0D
JO UOIIRDO] puB UOIUDIRI BY) O UoREJR Ul

L1/€0 Hoday 3pny jeius)u|

JBUSPHIUOD B 33eALI]

32



LZ1ZZE6 (81 10) uo Buosswly adle)) 10 69756 (8110} U Jaxied ULA) 10BIUO0D 2sea)d uoijewloul J3yng 104

[

*151X2 10U S20P 10IRIIPUL paysliqelss
10 AIOIN1EIS B 2IBUM USAD S]1DUnoD
ay1  SWLojUl  UDIym  Bupiaewysusq
01 yoeoidde ue doj@asp 01 Ho9s
1M SI0LJ0 “S3SED Yylog U] [edauan

*1012BIIUCD 3] WO YDeqpas)
HEME 9p "SIORAUCD [4d 01 paleiad
22U}J0 1\Bulged Ayl pue  Aunsead]
WH AQ uayel Buleq sdags yitm o aul
ul Aocuadedsuesy (edueul  pasealsul
03 92188 0] JOIDBIUOD BYl payse
Ausnal sAey  SI9DLMO  elduRUL

‘goueping 10} pa1oeIuc)
usaq aAey salyded Jsaylo ‘sprepuels
AIIsnpuL 01 SI2491 )} SJSUM 1O Je3d
usaq 30U SBY IDRIIU0D SY) USUYM
*1DRIU0D 3Y3 AC pa)1R1ap Se splepue)s
asueuLIopad 8y jsutede aoeyd usyey
sey Buwlojuow Ajjeryu] teuoliessdp

‘pasJdy

*Asuowl

10} anjeA J24)0 01 BULRULUOD pue 35ed
SSaulsng §31 UO SULISALISP SL }1DBIU0D
a1 1eU1 S)BIISUCWIDP 0] pasu Jea e
BARY S|1OUNOD 2Y3 ‘JsAcaU0y "9o1oed
1594 uasaudas 10U op sessadoud U0
SWa1sAs 4L pacnpad aq pInod jorauoD
3y3 Jo AJualdlyge pue asuewiopad
a1 asiwxewl 01 Ayuniieddo sy

T Mond

‘Bulpesy uyim 1oediuod)

SULSNOH |4d A213UM YMON 2431 SE Uydons
‘alaymas]a s1ledualunod sy yilm 530ejU02
Suldojaasp pue Uim Busiel) Aq s1oeIJUOD
papuny |44 {paie1a+ 21seM-UCU) Isylo
Q) sanbiuyoal 40 sdl) ‘suossa)

Aue SUlLIRS] JO S1LIBUSQ 3U) JOpLSU0D
pinoys Jedeuey 10a{old a3 Ajjenb3

‘@aJR Si] Ul JOIDRIIUCD

211 JO UOLINQLIIUCD pUR JORIIUCD

ay1 1o A3uoWl 10y aneA BULOSUO A}
BulueIadse ul njasn Ajeinoided ag )m
S| "2JoUMSs)@ WOoL) paudes) aq pined
Jey] asuewlo)ad Jo sonpeld poos Jo
sadwexs aq Aelw 3134) “1DRIIUOD 3Y] JO
2INJBU 3AL1E124 2Y1 UBALS plemiojiudiens
aq j0u AeW sly 1B paldadde

3L IS)IUM “S19POLW AIlsnpul 10 {4 Je)Lwis
Jsurese 10B1U0D £3Y a3 JO aduewIoIad
1eUolIR MG pUR BIDUBUL 3] JO
BUIIBWIYIUS PUR JUSLISSISSE SaYeIapuUn
diyssauiaed syl papuswiwodal st i

Gy

OZ

9y

LL/€0 Moday 1pny jeutaiy|

1e1UBPIIUOD B B1eALId

33



Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Detailed Findings

Objective 1

Bitling arrangements are timely and accurate for the three Boroughs

The pay mechanisms are well documented within the schedules of the Joint
Waste Agreement. The Principal Finance and Administration Officer has
responsibility to check that the payment requests are accurate and in
accordance with the agreement.

The Principal Finance and Administration Officer has confirmed there to be 3
mechanisms which vary from the agreement. The variations have not yet been
formally agreed/amended in the agreement but audit was advised these are
generally accepted as common sense and are in the early stages of being
formally agreed. The variations to the agreement are:

Landfill payment
JWA - based on residual tonnage
Actual - based levels taken to landfill - anything not recycled or green

10,000 additional tonnes purchase in Energy For Waste not in the JWA

JWA - This has been purchased since the agreement and therefore was not part
of the original JWA

Actual - split 50/50 split RBC and WDC

Bring Bank
JWA - based on historic tonnage

Actual - actual tonnage by site/borough data is available and therefore this is
used '

There are 2 main types of billing:

« Monthly on-account billing - is calculated using tonnage forecast figures.
These forecast figures were found to be agreed between the Finance
Manager of Re3 and the Chief Accountant of the Lead Authority. The use
of a set of excel spreadsheets shows the calculation of each element of
the monthly billing all feeding into the final bill. The Principal Finance
and Administration Officer confirmed that in addition to checking
individual billing element calculations the spreadsheet formula is
checked to ensure that the figure pulled through to the summary is
accurate.

« RPI indexing is applied whichis clearly documented on each
billing element.

The Quarterly reconciliation - is calculated 6 weeks in arrears using actuat
tonnage figures. A formatted weighbridge tonnage report is supplied by the
contractor for each of the monthswhich the Principal Finance and
Administration Officer sample checks against the source data to obtain
assurance over accuracy. Manual files are maintained which provide a

For further information please contact Kevin Par‘i?e% on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

transparent trail of the level of checking and investigation into queries
undertaken and the resulting amended bill. The difference between the
monthly on-account payments and the quarterly reconciliation is adjusted in
the following monthly on-account invoice.

The Chief Accountant confirmed that the Principal Finance and Administration
Officer supplies the final agreed version of the invoice and supporting data
which he reviews for any obvious differences to those expected. He instigates
the CHAPS payment and invoicing documentation to all partners for monies to
be exchanged on the 5th working day of the following month. All partners
receive an invoice and email notification of the amount due along with
supporting data for their use.

Objective 2

There is prompt collection and receipt of ail income due from member
boroughs and other customers

Following a robust checking process the Lead Authority issue debtors invoices
to partner Boroughs and payment to RE3 to be exchanged by CHAPS payments
on the same date, Audit was advised this is usually the 5th working day of the
month. This ensures that the Lead Authority is not financially compromised by
effectively loaning partner Boroughs their share of the charge.

Audit reviewed CHAPS payment requests and income receipt dates and
established:

« 1 payment was made on the 6th working day of the month

« 1 payment was made on the 4th working day of the month

« Both were in accordance with the payment terms printed on the invoice
« 1 payment was received late

The Chief Accountant advised that generally there are no issues with receiving
income from partners and this instance was not the norm. The Assistant
Accountant responsible for cash flow and treasury management confirmed
there was a financial impact of £90 to the Lead Authority. R1

In addition to the 3 member Boroughs West Berkshire residents also use the
Longshot Lane facility and have been charged at a rate of 7%. Both Reading
Borough and Wokingham Borough pay a 50% share of West Berkshire's portion
which is later recharged.

The billing process to West Berkshire is not via the JWA but an historic joint
arrangement in place from the Berkshire County Council period, Audit was
advised this is purely an historic reason and no other.

For further information please contact Ke‘ai? Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118} 9372121 '




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Objective 3

Payments are reasonable, accurate and authorised

Audit tested two monthly on-account payment requests and the first quarter
reconciliation for 2010 - 11.

Two monthly on-account billing documents, April and June 2010, were
reviewed and recalculated using the forecast tonnage figures. No anomalies
were identified.

The first quarter reconciliation for 2010-11 was recalculated using the

weighbridge data supplied by the contractor. Some minor issues were
identified.

» [t was noted that the third party contractor supplies weighbridge data to
WRG which the management team are unable to independently verify.
Whilst this is a small control framework risk the use of this third party
contractor is coming to an end.

« The monthly actuals worksheet for June is quoting .09-10 forecast
tonnage. Audit has confirmed with the contractor, via the Principal
Finance and Administration Officer that these forecast figures in this
workbook do not link to any other reporting data and will be amended.

+ Weighbridge data is supplied by WRG both formatted report and raw
data. A sample of waste lines in the formatted report is checked against
the raw data which is selected as a random sample. To further improve
this control the sample should cover all waste lines across the year. R2

Manual files are maintained which provide a transparent trail of the level of
checking and investigation into queries undertaken and the resulting amended
bill. The difference between the monthly on-account payments and the
quarterly reconciliation is adjusted on the following monthly on-account
invoice.

In addition to the 3 member Boroughs West Berkshire residents also use the

Longshot Lane facility and have been charged at a rate of 7%. A review of user

survey reports carried out in years 2008, 2009, and 2010 which identifies users

by postcode area clearly shows this percéntage no longer reflects actual usage:
2008 2009 2010

11.9% 13.5% 14.0%
Discussions have been held at Board level as to how to proceed.

Objective 4

There are regular reconciliations for both income and expenditure

The Principal Finance and Administration Officer supplies the Management
Accountant at RBC with payment and allocation figures on a monthly basis who
monitors the expense and receipt of income reconciling it to the Lead

faVal

For further information please contact Kevin Park)e(r)on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Authority’s financial system. Audit tested monies owed and monies due for the
2010-11 financial year and found no anomalies. Performance deductions as
quoted in the corresponding monthly performance report have been applied.

It was noted that whilst the expense and income shows in the financial system
and likewise the income received is recorded via the debtors system, Re3
invoices are not recorded in the creditors system. The current CHAPS payment
process does not allow for the invoice to be recorded or scanned on to the
creditors system. R3

The Principal Finance and Administration Officer performs the partnership
monitoring by producing forecasting of year-end outturn using both agreed
forecast costs, provisional un-reconciled actuals and reconciled actuals. These
are supplied to the accountants of each partner along with a more detailed
breakdown of charges.

The projection forms part of the progress report presented to the Joint Waste
Disposal Board.

Objective 5

There is adequate separation of duties over financial tasks

There are three distinct areas where financial duties are performed: namely
within Re3, within the Project Team and the Lead Council Accountancy
section. ‘

Through testing and discussions with personnel with financial responsibility
within the Management Team and the Lead Council Accountancy section Audit
is satisfied that the current staffing structure allows there to be adequate
separation of duties between:

« [dentifying billing, confirming its accuracy and arranging payment to the
contractor

» Calculation of the recharge to partner councils and authorisation of
payment request :

» Monitoring receipt and payment of monthly charge

Objective 6

Procedures for the effective operation and maintenance of facilities are in
accordance with the contract

' The WRG Administration Manager, upon request, provided a copy of insurance
certificate. It was noted that from detail available on the certificate the
indemnity levels are in accordance with part 2 of schedule 23 of the
agreement. The current period of insurance cover is 4th December 2010 - 3rd
December 2011.

For further information please contact Keﬁr( Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Audit requested sight of:

- Copies of operating manuals
+ Maintenance schedules

« Evidence of maintenance to show compliance with the agreed schedule
» Accident reports

Operating Manuals

A series of volumes make up the operating manual for each site. Audit has not
made an opinion as to completeness as this would require expertise in this field
and a greater detailed knowledge of assets and equipment held and operated
on each site. '

Each volume included the following data and documentation:

» Details of item/asset/equipment instalied
« Supplier recommendations

« Operating instructions

« Material specifications

« Certifications

» H&S requirements i.e. COSHH

« Warranties

All of these heading would appear appropriate. It was noted that the manuals
are in draft format and are held with the Contractor (Mark Tipton) who has
advised that the Council will receive a copy, electronic and manual, once
finalised. There would appear to be a good working relationship between the
Management. Team of the Council and the Contractor and indeed all
~information requested has been forthcoming. R1

There are a separate set of operating and maintenance volumes specifically for
the MRF which included:

System description and operating information including:

« Equipment data

« Studies and resulting actions

» Risk assessments

» Safety instructions and emergency procedures
» Operating instructions

« Technical drawings

Maintenance Schedules and Documentation

Servicing contracts and service job sheets are held to support both planned and
reactive maintenance. In addition to service contracts a series of spreadsheets
are maintained which record planned cleaning and servicing schedules by
regularity. Each task was found to be linked to its corresponding maintenance
manual and signed off by the 'cleaner/inspecting officer’ against the date
inspected. No gaps were found in these records.

For further information please contact Kevin Pa?ﬁg on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Objective 7

There is are established contingency arrangements in place in the event of
breakdown or other unforeseen circumstances

A provision has been made in the contract for the annual review
of contingency arrangements. Evidence has been seen to support submission of
such contingency arrangements having been reported to the management
team.

Audit reviewed the most recent contingency arrangements and made the
following observations:

« The contingency makes the assumption that only one of the facilities
covered by the arrangements may be unavailable

« Use of third party transfer station as agreed with Councils

» Materials will be transferred to a third party MRF (a) in the Central
Berkshire area before considering (b) outside the Central Berkshire area

» Direct delivery to third party green waste sites if available

It appears that contingencies do not include loss of other resources such as:

e Man power

« Power and other facilities

« Access restrictions

» Loss of a key third party contractor
« Lossof IT

During discussion with Mark Tipton, General Manager Audit was advised that
there are informal agreements with 3rd party contingency suppliers with
annuat checks undertaken. However it is accepted that this process needs to
be more robust and there are discussions occurring to increase the level of
checks and monitoring to that of suppliers on the 'off takers' list. This will
include formalising verbal contracts with monthly checks of required
permits, licences, insurance and policy certificates.

There is no formal or complete business continuity plan. However, actual
incidents have resulted in actions, agreements and procedures which have
enabled a service to be maintained. R4

Objective 8

There are arrangements in place for discharging Health and Safety
obligations

The contract agreement clearly discharges the responsibility of health and
safety to the contractor. In respect of insurance provision the
contract requires, upon request, that evidence be provided to the councils that
shows an insurance policy is in full force. This was requested by the Project
Manager and provided to Audit when it was noted that public liability is
included in the policy at £50m.

for further information please contact Ke‘%sjParker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03711

A sample of other expected health and safety elements providing discharged
duties were reviewed:

Hazardous waste licence
An annual registration of hazardous waste at Smallmead Civic Amenity Site,
start date 18th July 2010 was supplied under registration number NIT922.

Risk assessments

Two folders were supplied for testing covering the MRF, recycling centre and
the transfer station. Audit reviewed both folders and established there to be
at least annual review’s documented. Some small anomalies were found:

« Incorrect assessment date for asbestos handling - quoted as 2012
» 2 previous assessments missing in folder

There was also evidence of a new assessment being undertaken as a result of a
health and safety incident.

Training records

Training records for operator staff are held in files by name by year. At the
end of each year a summary is included which identifies training attended in
year and training needs for the forth coming year.

A folder is available for each site/area, recycling centre, MRF and transfer
station.

A certificate is held which details training course attended, date and objectives
of the course.

H&S Documents

Companies are required by law to display the following posters/documentation:

» HE&S Law
» H&S Policy
» Public Liability Insurance Policy

All dotuments were located at the signing in area on the ground floor and on
the second floor of the building. '

First aider

Photographs and contact numbers are displayed outside the general office on
the second floor at the Smallmead site.

Incident reporting
The Project Manager confirmed that all incidents are recorded on an incident
log and also to the management team. Audit reviewed the incident log for
2010-11 and found:

* 53 incidents at Smallmead of which 11 were investigated

B

S on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on

o

For further information please contact Kevin Par
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential ' Internal Audit Report 03/11

e 7 incidents at Longshot Lane of which 2 were investigated

Details of incidents were found in the supporting reports presented at the
contract management team monthly meetings.

Objective 9

There is a strategy for the promotion of facilities and the raising of
awareness of waste and recycling issues

Currently the direction of strategy is determined by the Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy 2008-13 which is driven centrally by Government, due for
review during the 2011-12 financial year. However, all partners have individual
service plans which culminate into the Re3 Project Service Plan with no one
authority priorities given greater significance. The aspirations of the plan are,
in its nature, broad but include increasing recycling and composting through
existing and/or new services. The expected activity to achieve this is
documented as:

« To work with the contractor to increase the range of materials recycled
at the Re3 facilities. This will be measured by comparing actual range
of recycled waste year on year. An annual report details the range of
recycled waste, two reports are available spanning three financial years
2007-08 to 09-10 which indicates one additional type of recycled waste

~ has been added.

» Development of ideas and opportunities which increase the level of
utilisation of the Re3 facilities, particularly those which can increase
income to the Re3 councils.

« To develop (where necessary non-contractual) indicators which serve to
identify potential service improvement areas and which influence
the private sector partner to strive for continuous improvement. The
Project Manager believes this can be achieved through the existing
monitor framework which includes satisfaction surveys, performance
management, complaints and enquiries. In addition, a detailed focused
strategic plan could also provide a means by measuring achievements to
needs.

+ Implementation of the repaint scheme. The implementation of this
scheme is imminent.

The Project Manager advised that a workshop took place in October 2010 which
facilitated strategic discussion attended by three Heads of Service and three
Members. A follow up workshop is planned to take place in September 2011.
The development of these priorities is also included as an action in the 2011-12
service plan. A greater strategic focus would also provide some continuity
within such a currently fragile political environment. R5

The contract provides for the engagement of an Education and Waste
Minimisation Officer, this post remains vacant at this time. The responsibilities
of this post are:

A4

For further information please contact th’iil’] Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

1. To develop local markets for recycled materials as well as working with
local community groups in order to promote and encourage recycling
markets

2. To communicate with the general public, promote the public acceptance
of the need for an integrated waste management system in the Councils

3. Encourage public participation in waste Recycling and Composting
initiatives '

Although this post is currently vacant it has been found that progress is being
made in the following areas:

+ Repaint scheme and development with Charity organisations

+ Local newspaper ‘wrap around' distributed to all partner residents on a
monthly basis

However it would appear that at present the proactive educational aspect of
this role is lacking. A clear decision is required as to the longer term impact of
not providing this service and how the Board wish to proceed. Ré

It has been established that the Lead Authority has responsibility for
responding to Re3 Partnership public relations in an agreed partner co-
ordinated fashion regardless of where the question has arisen.

Objective 10

There is an understanding by all partners of the key elements of the
contract and of the roles and responsibilities of the main parties as defined
in the Joint Waste Agreement (JWA)

Responsibilities and delegated responsibilities are documented within the
JWA. The structure has been developed to allow for all partner and all levels
of management (with the exception-of CEOs) to partake and inform direction
and performance. The added groups within the formal structure are quite
appropriate  but there has been no formalisation of roles and
responsibilities. Whilst each operate under the JWA, to ensure the success
and performance of the Principal Contract and the Agreement, a more formal

governance arrangement may facilitate a more empowered and greater joined
- up and transparent governance arrangement. R6

Heads of Service for each of the partner Councils were contacted for their
comments, opinion was unanimous that the structure is fit for purpose.
Reasons given include:

» Key players are present on the Board

« Unofficial groups support and inform with a common link of the Project
Manager

» The structure allows for individual partner priorities to be discussed and
identify joint working initiatives

» All partners inform the direction which the Management Team need to
take

For further information please contact Kevin Pa?ltér on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121 -




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

» Discussions address both individual Council and Partnership needs
+ Discussions are undertaken in an open, fair and respectful manner

Through discussions between the Project Manager and the Contractor the JWA
was reviewed in 2008. Suggested amendments went to the Board in September
2008, and are in the process of being supplemented and formally accepted and
approved by all partners. This was last discussed by the Board and minuted for
the meeting of 16th March 2011. The Project Manager advised the service
delivery plan is due to be reviewed in early summer of 2011.

Objective 11

There are adequate arrangements in place for the continuous management
and supervision of the contract and personnel to provide for proper
accountability throughout

Generally the same management team has been in place since the
commencement of the contract providing a level of expertise in this area that
may be difficult to replace or cover should the need arise. Indeed there
are two low risks identified on the partnership risk register surrounding this.
Through discussion with the Project Manager and the Principal Finance and
Administration Assistant, Audit has established the arrangements that should
minimise the effect of a change in personnel. This includes:

o Documented procedures, although the Principal Finance and
Administration Officer confirmed that some require up dating.

 Electronic files located on a shared drive. The Project Manager adVISed
that some house keeping is required in this area.

« Shared drive accessible from other Lead Council sites.

« Actual business continuity incidents such as snow and floods. However,
lessons learned from these incidents have not culminated into a formal
business continuity plan.

It is likely that in the short term or for a known period of absence the
remaining management team member(s) would have sufficient knowledge of
systems and the contract to provide a continuous service with the assistance of
other key players such as the Chief Accountant, who is an original member of
the negotiations of the PFl. R4

Objective 12

There are appropriate reporting arrangements that allow for effective
challenge and appropriate accountability

The Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB) administer the operation of the waste
disposal arrangements of the Councils in accordance with the Joint Working
Agreement and in accordance with the Principal Contract (schedule 4, Project
Plan). The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) is the formal agreement between
the three Councils. The JWDB is supported by:

» The waste project management team

For further information please contact Ké\lifa Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

» Legal services supplied by Bracknell Forest Council
» Public relations services supplied by Reading Borough Council

Formal and informal groups are established to enable the waste project team
to report and recommend actions to the JWDB in accordance with the contract
and JWA. A monthly contract meeting is required between the Contractor and
the Councils. Minutes support there to have been 11 meetings during 2010-11.
In addition the following informal groups have been established:

» Accountants meetings - attended by accountants of all Councils

» PFl Management team - attended by Heads of Service of all Councils

« Waste Management and Officers -.attended by Heads of Service and
Waste Officers of atl partner Councils prior to the meeting above

» Re3 Com - attended by waste project team and Waste Officers.

Currently there is no attendance by CEOs, however the Project Manager has
advised negotiations are underway with the aim to establish this.

Audit_revieWed the available minutes and can confirm that:

» Contracted required meetings generally are in line with the meeting
schedule

«  PFI Management team and pre-meeting with waste officers are in
accordance with the schedule

» There are insufficient minutes to substantiate the regularity of Re3 Com
meetings and accountant meetings

» Indeed minutes of agreed actions may need to be referred to should
disagreement or reporting differences occur

The main conduit between all groups and meetings is the Project Manager.

Through discussion with the Project Manager Audit was advised there has been

an issue regarding the retendering process of the haulage contract. This is

the first re-tendered contract which was brought forward due to the possible

lead in time required for the winning contractor to obtain haulage vehicles to
fulfil the contract requirement. This was agreed by the Board and documented

in the minutes of 21st September 2010. The Project Manager advised other

sub-contracts are due for renewal next year.

The contractor is required to undergo a robust and transparent tender process
and seek the comments and agreement from the Management Team who will
present the agreed proposed outcome to the JWDB for formal approval.

Issues regarding the retendering process have been highlighted during
Management challenge, which has resulted in the Contractor executing the

retendering process again to fulfil the required tendering standards as detailed
in the contract.

For further information please contact Kevin Paﬁé—:}r on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidentiat Internal Audit Report 03/11

It should be noted that Audit was unable to find any minutes from the monthly
contract meetings where issues have been documented. Despite this it would
appear that the Management Team are fulfilling their scrutiny function. R5

Objective 13

There is an established risk management process that allows for a full and
proper risk register that reflects the partnership’s key risks

Audit reviewed various versions of the risk register and noted changing risk
rating of recorded risks indicating this to be a 'living’ document. A discussion of
high and medium risks is a standing agenda item for Board meetings.

The Project Manager advised that the full register is not discussed with the
Board and is utilised by the Management Team to inform discussions with other
groups. He also advised that responsibilities are not documented for key
elements of risk man agent such as:

» Setting the risk policy
« Setting the risk appetite
» |dentifying threats

» Individual risk ownership

R5
A review of the risk register identified 5 main areas of risk:

Lakeside Energy from Waste (4, 5)

LATS (15, 16}

Retlationships (18)

Performance - both client and contractor (21, 22, 23)

Health and Safety issues - fire detection and methane gas build up (24,
25}

The full risk register covers a variety of risk types:

Knowledge risks

Relationship risks

Health and safety/accident risks
Performance risks

Financial risks

There may be the opportunity to further improve on the risk management
process by carrying out a 'SWOT' analysis and to utilise different methods of risk
identification, specifically scenario based and up-and-coming events. It was
noted that there are no risks relating to retendering process of sub-contracts.

The risk management process should be directly linked to clear strategic,
operational, reporting and compliance objectives which should be agreed and
documented in a focused service plan.

For further information please contact KeLvl'i? Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

Objective 14

There is a robust programme in place to ensure that performance is
monitored and, where necessary, remedial action taken in the event of
inadequate or poor performance

Each month the contractor is required to provide a report summarising
performance for the previous month. Essentially the report is a summary of
performance analysed against the main areas of operation and performance as
defined in the Performance Mechanism detailed in schedules 25-26 of the
contract, namely:

501 Waste Management & disposal

SOZ2  Waste reception & transfer

S03  Civic Amenity & Bring Back sites

S04  Markets for recovered products

SO5  Interface with the public

S06  Contingency plans

507  Contract management and expiry plans
SO8  Service management

509  Health & safety

Where performance does not meet the standard prescribed in the contract, the
report also details performance deduction(s) associated with this under-
performance. The report is compiled by the Administration Manager using the
- contractor’s own records as supporting evidence, as is discussed as part of the
monthly performance meeting. A series of sample. checks were made by
Internal Audit to ensure that the performance outputs reported by the
contractor for April 20101 were accurate and fully supported by records.

A sample of 8 service area targets across the range of performance topics was
selected for testing and the contractor asked to provide evidence to support
the reported performance, as summarised below:

SO1:1 Availability of sites

There is an obligation under the contract requires that the sites “are not
unavailable”, The contractor maintains a spreadsheet listing where either
Smallmead or Longshot were unavailable for use at any time. The reasons for
closure principally are for reasons of weather, fire drill etc. Where a facility
has to be unavailable, the contractor will usually tell the Project Manager or
one of his team,

For April 2010 the spreadsheet showed no occasion(s) where either facility was
unavailable and hence, no issues were noted as arising.

S02:2 Turnaround times

Under the terms of the Performance Mechanism, it is specified that the
“Contractor shall ensure that each Authorised Vehicle spends no tonger than 20

P
EF on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on

7'\'"_; N

For further information please contact Kevin Par
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

minutes from the time(it) is weighed in at the weighbridge” to the time it is
weighed out,

In order to achieve this, the data is downloaded from the system and
interrogated to identify times in excess of 20 minutes. In the case of April 2010
it was noted in the Monthly Performance Report that there had been 11
reported cases of turnaround failures although only one was outside of the
tolerance allowed and a total of 5 default points applied.

As part of the Performance Report the instances of turnaround performance
failures are listed together with an assessment of whether the reasons for
these were acceptable or excusable as defined in the Performance Mechanism
Schedule). In the case of April 2010 the calculation was re-run by the
Contractor at the request of Internal Audit and then re-checked for both the
Smallmead and Longshot Lane sites. In turn this was checked back against the
details of performance failures listed in Section 11 of the Monthly Performance
Report to ensure consistency, and it was found that:

« The analysis now showed a total of 18 (not 11) turnarounds being outside
of the 20 minute target

» In the case of both Smallmead and Longshot Lane 5 out of 9 instances
agreed and 4 did not

» One failure listed in the original Monthly Performance Report (29/4/10
vehicle reg no YJ53 UEK) was not recorded on the recent system analysis

The Contractor’s Administration Manager advised that since the details were
reported as part of the April 2010 Performance Report, that the report was re-
run some 3 months later producing the different results. It had not been
reported to the client side and offset against later months reported figures.
R7. Changes to the measurement criteria used by the Contractor, identified by
client side staff as a result of the discrepancies above, are being agreed.

Furthermore regarding the decision to record the reasons for the turnaround
failure, Internal Audit was informed that this is down to the discretion of the
weighbridge office staff, who decides from a selection of options using a drop
down facility. Client side staff have reviewed the drop down list and have
proposed the removal of only one reason. R8

S02:6 Recyclate quality check

All loads are visually inspected once they have been tipped. These inspections
are not evidenced, however in cases of significant spoiling or contamination,
these are photographed and reported to the Project Team. In the case of the
month sampled, April 2010, no issues were noted.

S03:4 Operation of Bring Bank sites

A schedule in the Performance Mechanism specifies the number of working
days, and regularity each Bring Bank should be emptied. This is monitored by

For further information please contact KeLvl'ié
(0118) 9372121

Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on




Private & Confidential ‘ Internal Audit Report 03/11

WRG using check lists completed by the bring bank lorry driver(s) and then the
results are entered on to a spreadsheet, when actual performance is monitored
against defined targets.

In the case of the sample month reviewed - April 2010 - it was noted that two
bring bank sites had not been emptied on target or within the allowed
rectification period, and hence incurred performance deductions. These
deductions were highlighted and clearly summarised in the monthly
Performance Report.

SO5:5 Correspondence monitoring

As part of the 505:4 standard, WRG is required to have a system for receiving,
acknowledging and responding to complaints. Under SO5:5 the contractor is
required to allow the councils access to all correspondence.

To test compliance with both elements, Internal Audit requested sight of the
complaints and correspondence spreadsheet that tracks the flow of
correspondence / complaint. It was noted that the correspondence is scanned
and then hyperlinked against the relevant entry in the spreadsheet, which
provides a coherent and consolidated record.

S08:7 Monitoring - sites

508:7 of the Performance Mechanism relates to the monitoring at each facility.
The contractor achieves this by using a detailed standard proforma addressing
numerous issues (environmental hazards, fire equipment, first equipment, risk
assessments, procedures and training etc). Each heading is then broken down
into a series of sub-issues against which the assessor is required to indicate
compliance or otherwise,

Non-compliance with the standard required then results in a series of actions
that are separately listed at the end of the form, together with initials of the
person(s) responsible for the action(s) and the date(s) these need to be
completed by. These actions should be tested or verified by the Re3 Contract
Monitoring Officer. The Re3 Contract Monitoring Officer has requested sight of
the inspection reports and we anticipate the assistance of the Contractor in
addressing this issue.

S08:13 Site diary

The Site Diary for last year was provided by Operations as evidence of activities
and personnel on site. According to the Performance Mechanism Schedule, the
site diary should be in a form required by the Environment Agency. The current
EA permitting regime does not stipulate exactly what should be included in the
site diary. However, a request for information from the EA by the re3 Contract
Monitoring Officer elicited a helpful response and confirmation that it is
expected that the following issues were generally required:

+ details of visitors to the site (except site users);

For further information please contact Kevin Parﬂ'e(? on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

» details of maintenance and breakdowns of any plant and machinery;

» details of inspections for vermin and/or insects, including control
measures taken;

+ accidents to any person visiting the site as well as damage to vehicle and
infrastructure;

+ notification of incidents reported to the Environment Agency;

« notification made to the Councils of site closures; and

» the site diary will be made available to the Councils when requested.

The entries for April 2010 for the Smallmead site were checked and generally
the detail in the Re3 site diary found that similar sorts of issues (as above)

were logged. The site diary for the Longshot Lane site was not viewed however.
R9

S09:7 Site rules

The Site Manager’s Rules were viewed and assessed as appropriate and
comprehensive. It was also noted that against the signing in sheet for visitors,
there is a column against which visitors should indicate whether they had read
these rules. '

Objective 15

There is a clear programme and methodology in place to test the
contractor’s performance to ensure the partnership's objectives are (being)
met

This strategy is aligned / refers to the Re3 risk register

Proactive contract monitoring by the client side is still relatively new, given
that the initial phase(s) of the contract was intentionally concerned with
bedding the system in and establishing systems were robust. However within
the past year a specific client side contract monitoring post has been filled by
an applicant with some previous related experience.

Prior to this time, the basis for monitoring was focused on performance
reporting principally by the contractor. What was not so clearly defined was
what happened in a proactive way from a client side perspective to test the
quality of the outputs. Nevertheless as above, it was always anticipated that a
contract monitoring strategy / programme would be developed in time.

The Contract Monitoring Officer started in 2010, and her initial focus was to
read and understand the contract and in particular to identify the required
performance standards, notably the key ones. This contract monitoring
function relates to both Smallmead and Longshot Lane sites. A specific issue
relating to completion of a full risk assessment delayed the Contract Monitoring
Officer having unfettered site access. Without this WRG did not agree to
unsupervised site access, making the process more difficult and ltess intuitive.
After some delay, clearance was formally agreed by the contractor in respect
of Smallmead and for Longshot Lane sites. The principal objections related to
where and how contract menitoring might take place. .

For further information please contact Keﬂi'ﬁ’Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

The Contract Monitoring Officer has developed a contract monitoring
programme that breaks down the each performance element / service
outcome, and defines what is required to confirm to meet the particular
outcome. For example “The documents referred to in the detailed
maintenance plan should be updated on an appropriate basis so as the detailed
maintenance plan can be considered up-to-date. As far as possible, we need to
ensure that these documents are followed by the contractor. The detailed
maintenance plan itself should be provided no later than one month prior to
the start of each contract year.” (501:5) The findings arising from the contract
monitoring programme then describe what the client side's view is. If there is a
improvement issue that needs to be addressed then this is raised with the
contractor.

The audit review recognises that progress has been made in developing a more
proactive approach to contract monitoring by the client side, and further
details of this strategy are outlined elsewhere in this report, however the
principal observation is that there is no defined link between the contract
monitoring programme being used (and developed further), the Re3 risk
register or the constituent 3 boroughs own corporate priorities in terms. of
waste disposal. This is recognised by the Project Manager who has commented
that the findings of this audit will be helpful in determining future practice and
forming the basis of a full review. R10

Objective 16

The standard(s) of performance are agreed, up to date, relevant and clearly
defined

There is a clear relationship between performance monitoring strategies
and the boroughs' own objectives _ ,

Where performance is below target then the reasons are investigated and
remedial action taken

As above, the Contract Monitoring Officer has only been in post for less than a
year, hence the proactive contract monitoring by the client is in its relative
infancy. Nevertheless since her appointment the Contract Monitoring Officer
has started to develop a programme and timetable of contract monitoring
activities.

As part of this programme, the Contract Monitoring Officer has devised a
spreadsheet to record contract monitoring. This is populated principally from
specific issues and evidence as well as from the notes taken during the course
inspections and testing. Generally these were assessed as being of a good
standard, documenting the issues in adequate detail. All actions are dated on
the spreadsheet, and the discrete sections of the spreadsheet are colour coded
to denote status etc. Audit review of the spreadsheet and of the supporting
documents noted that:

« The Contract Monitoring Officer asks lots of questions of the contractor,
and generally has had answers to these from the General Manager

For further information please contact Kevin Paf@y on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
{0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential " Internal Audit Report 03/11

« Where the responses were inconclusive, then these have been followed
up by the Contract Monitoring Officer. The contract monitoring records
show the Contract Monitoring Officer has shown a determination to get
answers to her questions and queries and where the need to highlight
issues has been necessary then she has done so with the Project
Manager. This focus or tenacity is an important aspect of contract

~ monitoring and it was evident in much of the documentary evidence
reviewed.

» Most issues arising from contract monitoring enquiries are detailed in
emails. and correspond to the highlighted areas /issues on the
monitoring spreadsheet

» Generally as a consequence of the above actions, the responses or
information received back from the contractor is specific and
unambiguous.

As well as documenting contract monitoring outcomes on the spreadsheet the
Contract Monitoring Officer also maintains manual files that document:

a) the Contract Monitoring Officer's documented on site observations;

b) the detail of the service objectives (SO 1 - 9). This documents the detail
from the contract, together with the associated questions and answers,
and reflects the need the specification detail of the contract and the required
outcomes against each area of the specification.

Nevertheless a number of issues were noted in relation to current contract

monitoring where it is Internal Audit's view that further improvements could be
made:

a) the contract monitoring spreadsheet specifically does not reflect latest risk
register and has not been agreed or signed off. Moreover, many of the issues
are complex and detailed, and there is potential that the key risks and issues
might not be focused on, given that there is no clear relationship between the
partnership’s risks and the contract monitoring strategies in place. R10

b) the process(es) for responding to contract monitoring enquiries - and the
formal issues arising as a result - have not been agreed by all parties. WRG has
asked that these issues be fed through a named / specific WRG employee,
although the Project Manager's view is that these are real issues that should be
addressed as part of the regular formal monthly progress, attended by the WRG
General Manager, Finance Manager and Operations Manager as well as the
relevant partner borough officer representatives. R11

c) currently photographic evidence is not used to record any matters arising,
R12

d) the spreadsheet record that the Contract Monitoring Officer has devised is
updated / and overwritten each month (ie a separate one is not maintained to
record activities, notes, observations etc for each period / month).
Furthermore some of the supporting documentary evidence has been saved to

I~

For further information please contact Ké)viln Parker on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on
(0118) 9372121




Private & Confidential Internal Audit Report 03/11

date on the Contract Monitoring Officer's H drive, rather than the shared
drive. R13

d) the Contract Monitoring Officer produced a timetable for contract
monitoring activities across (the remainder of) 2010/11, although to date no
_ similar timetable had been developed for 2011/12. R14

e) to date, those systems and check(s) used by client side officers to gauge or
measure how the Re3 contract is performing and managed (and specifically
how it is monitored) against other comparable models operating elsewhere in
the UK. Equally although performance is obviously monitored, no evidence was
seen to demonstrate that the performance is benchmarked against any industry
standard. R15

Objective 17

The main contractor monitors its own performance and is required to report
the outcomes to the partnership

Under the terms Part VI of the Project Agreement (ref 33.2), the contractor is
required to carry out a monthly performance monitoring exercise. The
contractor does this by reporting on its performance against the standard
objectives and is required to provide evidence of this in the monthly
Performance Report. See section 3.5 for further details.

Prior to the appointment of the Contract Monitoring Officer these reports were
not tested by the project team for accuracy or compliance, although they were
reviewed by the Project Manager and discussed as part of the monthly contract
meetings between WRG, and officer representatives from each of the
boroughs.

The audit looked for evidence of discussion of the monthly Performance reports
at the monthly contract meetings for the period April - June 2010. Generally
the minutes showed a healthy and open discussion of issues arising from the
performance reports, although evidence of the April agenda and minutes as
well as the agenda for the May meeting was not on held on the shared drive.

As well as conducting proactive monitoring tests and exercises, the Contract
Monitoring Officer now tests the accuracy of the performance data submitted
by WRG in the monthly performance reports, although the basis for the testing
is determined by her own judgment and her assessment of risk, rather than
being informed by the corporate Re3 agreed risks. R10

For further information please contact Kevin Paﬁgr on 0118 9372694 or Claire Armstrong on .
{0118) 9372121




Assurance Opinion Guidance

The four levels of assurance opinion can be defined as follows:

“There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system
objectives with controls being consistently applied.”

“Whilst there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses which may
put some objectives at risk”.

“Weaknesses in controls are such as to put objectives at risk.”

"Control is generally weak leaving the system/service open to significant
error or abuse.”

Some degree of judgement is necessary in determini ng the level of assurance opinion in any given
review but the following should provide a guide.

If the highest risk category is Priority 3 then assurance should be either Full (if, for example,
there is only one Low Risk) or otherwise Substantial. :

If the highest risk category is Priority 2 then assurance should normally be Substantial but could
be Limited if, for example, there is a lack of commitment by managers to implement
recommendations or there are medium risks in the majority of risk areas.

If the highest risk category is Priority 1 then assurance should normally be Limited but could be
Substantial if, for example, there is strong commitment by managers to implement
recommendations and only one risk is high.

If the highest risk category is Priority 1 and there are multiple high-risk recommendations, then
assurance should normally be Minimal, unless in exceptional circumstances at the discretion of
the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management.

53




This page is intentionally left blank

54



TO:

1.1

21

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Agenda ltem 7

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
7™ July 2011

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD
REPORT ON AMENDMENTS TO re3 JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT
(Report by the Project Director)

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the result of a review of the Joint
Working Agreement (JWA) and proposed amendments.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve the changes to the Joint Working Agreement as
detailed at Appendix 1.

That Members approve the plan for formalising the amendments as described
at 3.5 to 3.8 below.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Review of Joint Working Agreement

There have been two previous substantive reports on amendments to the JWA (30
September 2008 and 18 March 2009). Upon each occasion, Members indicated their
approval for proposed changes.

Since that time, each council has sought and received the approval to adopt a list of
changes to the JWA from its respective Executive.

Subsequent to that approval, further changes were identified and precipitated a
review of the process to date prior to the formal sealing of a new JWA (and adoption
of it as a working document for the partner councils). The process of sealing the
document is akin to the process undertaken upon ‘signing’ the joint waste PFI
contract on October 31% 2006. The JWA is part of the PFI contract.

At the last JWDB Meeting on March 16 2011, Members asked that the proposed
changes to the JWA be brought to this meeting. Those changes are included at
Appendix 1.

Officers have reviewed all the changes previously approved by the JWDB and those
which they deemed, through regular use of the JWA, to be necessary. Those
changes are proposed to the JWDB for approval.

Subject to approval by the JWDB, the changes will be included in a new version of
the JWA and each council will be asked to propose the date of an appropriate
Executive meeting at which they will approve it.

Subject to those approvals, officers will arrange for a date upon which the new
version can be sealed.

It is proposed that the agreed dates, mentioned at both 3.6 and 3.7 above, be
reported to Members at the next JWDB Meeting.

55



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Reports to JWDB (30" September 2008, 18" March 2009 and 16™ March 2011)
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION

Mark Moon, Project Director

0118 974 6308
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk

Oliver Burt, Project Manager
0118 939 9990
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk

56



I

re3 PrOjeCt Team zerging in on waste
REVIEW OF RE3 JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT 2011

Introduction

The Joint Working Agreement forms part of the re3 Joint Waste PFI. It describes the
way in which the three councils will work together to bring about the successful
delivery of the wider contract and to address their own obligations under it.

Since the commencement of the contract in December 2006, the councils have
proposed a number of amendments to the Joint Working Agreement. Some of the
proposed changes have been approved by the Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB)
and some of the changes have been approved by the Contractor. At no time,
however, have the changes been signed/sealed by all three councils and thus
adopted.

There is a need to conclude the process and to that end a review has been
undertaken which considers the previously proposed changes and newly identified
ones. In keeping with the expectations of the JWDB (as per the minutes of the
meeting on March 16" 2011) it is intended that a final, amended version of the JWA
be created in consultation with our appropriate in-house legal advisors. It will pull
together the approved, appropriate and necessary changes to the JWA. Once
complete, and in an appropriate form, it will be put before the JWDB at its next
meeting and, by an agreed date, subsequently adopted.

The changes included within the final version of this document will supersede all
previously proposed changes.

re3 Project Team - June 2011 - Page 1 of 12

57




71 10 7 38eq - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

2ouBMO|lY SV sSnidins sy ‘paaibe Ajeninw aq o}
swJa} uo ‘eseyalnd 0} [eSNja. 1SIl} B SABY ||IM LIO1BP

aoueMO|lY S1Vv] B bBuluielas seiued Jo Aued Auy

"1018p J0 sn|dins S]] UMO SHI Ulelal
lleys Aued yoe3 -ynsal [Im @ouBMOJlY S1V7 U
B 90UBMO|lY SV M8yl Wou) Sisyip ydlym |jypue)
0l MING Jo abeuuol e spuss Aued yoes aiaym

‘(wsiueyos
uonEedo||Y [elouUBUI{) € Hed SIUl UM 99Ueplodde
Ul saled UdaM}Sg pajedo|e &g PINOYS yons se
pue ‘salued a8y} 0} MOJj Ysed e ul ynsal Aew yoiym
JoSSe Ue aJe INg ‘}9SSe USED B J0U dJe SSOUBMO||Y

Sly]  loeauo) jediould 8yl Jo ynsal e se

v
A103218D) 21SEA, 10BNUOY) ) 0) A1IBJ OB JO UOMNGLNUOD SANE[AI
ap o3 uomuodoxd ur pajeoo[e sI sonued [[B 10] J1ogep Jo snjdins
25euuo) VUEMOTTY SLV'T [BI0) 12U 24 1Y) Jopio ul ‘usooseddad
B JOJ ‘sanIed 9Y) U29MISq PAIISJsueT) ST 0GP 10 snjdims 90ueMo[[y
S1v1 1eu Supmsar oy ‘seOUBMO[[Y SLVT SonMed oyl wWoif
SISJJIP UOIYM [ILPUR] 01 MINE JO oSeuuo) B puods sonIed oy UGN

“(WSTURYSIN UOHEIO[[Y [BIOUBULY) € Med
SIY) YIIM 90UBPIOJOB UI SINIEJ US3MISQ PAJBOO[[E 9q p[noys yons
Se pue ‘sanIeJ 9yl 0] MO[} Ysed e ul J[nsar ewl goIM Jasse U are
g ‘19858 YSBI B JOU TB SSOUBMO[[Y SLV'T "198nuc) redound aq
JO J[nsal e Se 9sLe ABW SOOUBMO[[Y SV’ Wl 30[ep Jo snidins v

SHONVMOTIV SLVTJ0 INTANOLLYOddY  °IT 800¢
asue Aew S8oUBMO|lY S1VYT Ul lIoyap Jo snidins y 1dag
. penuo) redpug o€
[lounod
[1ounon ybnolog Buipesy %G 09 ‘1oUN0D 10LISIg WEYBUNO 800¢
ybnosog Buipeay %8, ‘ounc) jouisiq weyBupopm %zE offel aul Ul Hids g [Im 1deg
%G'6E Olel 8yl Ul Nids aq [Im SIS00 8yl Aujioe) pesw|lews
$1500 9U} Ayjioe) peswiiews oy} 18 UOJEUIWEILOD Wil SasUE Ajuwapul sy} Biaum Z'L'G) (01
8Uyl 1B uonBUIWBUOD WOJ} S8SUEe Ajuwapul 8yl aleym g'L'GlL gamer

1xa] pasodolid

xa1 [euibuQ

58



71 Jo ¢ a8eq - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

‘|leys awes ay} Jo s}nsaJ ayl pue >=m3ccm _uwumwa.w._
9d 11eys £V osned-gns ul pajlelsp AaAIns oyl

‘Aued yoes Ag epew aq 01 sjuswAed sy} Jo uoiiodoid ayi 18s
0] pasn aq |eys Aeang spuadapu] ayl Aq paysijgelss asn

JO s|eA8| eyl Ly esne|) 0} 108[gns *A9AING uoL)dejSLies
19sn, jenideauo) oyl Jo ped se pajajdwod

99 1M AdAJns juapuadapul ay: ‘pieog [esodsiq slseM
wior ayl Aq peaibe esimiaylo ssojun -Jabeue) 108loid ol
ay) Aq peaibe aq [Im AaAins ay) 1no ALeD [jIm oym uosiad ayl
J0 Auapi ay) pue Aaains siyy 1o} ABojopoylsw pue adoos ay ]
‘eale aanedsiuiwpe [seiued] sAued yoese ul Buiny sdoad
Ag saug Anuswy OIAID Yl JO BSn JO S|9Ad] Byl UsIge1se
0] saiued oyl Aq usyeuspun aq |m ABAING Juspuadepul

Uue JuswadusWWO) 8oIAeS  |IN4  Buimojo)  Ajereipawiw)

‘Juawaalby sy} Jo 81ep 8y} 0}
Joud seaA [eroueuly syl Buunp saiued ayl Jo yoes 0] paleoo|e
aJe yoiym saug Anuswy 2IA1D 8yl e sabeuuo] y Alobaren
91SEM\ 10BJUOD jOo suoiodosd Byl Jo siseq ayi uo lds
aq |m suawAed palejas als Aluswy OIAID JUBLISOUBWWOYD
90IAJIBS [|IN4 [nuN Juswsalby siy) Jo ainjeubis Jo a1ep 8yl woi-

saNs Anuawy 2IA1) 1e sabeuuo] Jo uoledo|y

14%

ev

4

‘sonued 21y usamiaq pauonodde aq [egs
sjuowiAed Moy YsI[qeIsa 0) Pasn aq [[eys SWIBS I JO $)MSII ) UL IdNJeaIay
Ieak [erdueul 1o 1043 pue 1oenuo)) fedund 9yl jo wid) Jumumewal ) jo

Ieaf [erouBUL pary) 2y} ul pajeadar oq [[RYS £V ISNE[I-QNS UI PI[IBIAp AAINS Y], Y

*fired goeo Aq apewr
aq 01 syweurked oy Jo uonsodoxd ay) 135 01 pasn 2q [reys AaAIng juapuadepuy
Aq paysIIqeIsd SN JO S[AA] AP LY 3sne[) 01103fqng 10enuc)) [ediourd 9 Jo
uLR) 2 JO JB2I X JOBNUOD) 151 9y SUIMO[OJ 12Go1oQ) pue sunf Aremigaj/Aenuer
ur spouad Yoam gz ool a0 parepdwoo 2q [ Leams juspuodopuy Ay,
“pIeog [esodsi( a1sep JUTOf 1 Aq paasSe aq M AJAINs ) N0 ALIED [[IM OgMm
uoszad atp) Jo LAnuapr 2t pue £3Ams sy} 10] AJojoporpeur pue adoos Ay, ‘BaIe
aAnenstuIpe sonred yoes ur Futar apdoad Aq sang Aimaury o1ar) oy Jo ums.
JO S[eA] 2} USIqRISS 01 S3NIEJ o1 AQ uUSHESpun aq [[im AoAmg yuspuadapuy
ue 0enuo)) redroutLy oy Jo Wi Y1 Jo wa L loenuo)) Mepdwos a1y oy Sung £V

U018y S JO 21EP AP
0} Joud Jeaf [eroueury oy SuNp SoNUEJ 91 JO OB 0} PIIEDO[[e I8 YOIYM SIS
Ausury o1AL) oY) 1e safeuuo} v Lofee)) dsep wenuo)) jo suontodoxd oy
Jo siseq a1 uo yds aq M SiuamAed paie[al alig ANULUIY JIAL) PeSUI[[BS 12
AMIN 2 Jo uonedurio) syl [NUN JuSWRISY ST Jo ameuds jo o1ep o) Wold TV

sayig Ajuswy 911D Je sebeuuoy Jo uoiedo||y Y

8002
1deg
(01
aamr

“Houep
118yl Jo 1w 8yl 01 dn sailed Jo Aued Jaylo ayl Jo

59



71 1o  a8eq - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

Jo uoiiodoud ay} 18s 0} pasn aq |[eys AsAins ay) Aq paysi|gelsa
asn JO S|oAd| By “18qo1o0 pue aunp Arenuge4/Arenuer ul spouad
)oam g 98Iy} Jano pala|dwod aq |Im AaAins 8y “pJeog [esodsig
B1SeA\ luior 8y} Aq paalbe aq [im ABAINs 8y} 1IN0 ALieD [|Im

oym uosiad ayj jo Amjuapl 8y} pue Aaains siy} 1o} ABojopoylow
pue 8doos 8y "eale dAlBIISIUIWPE Sallled Yyoea ul Bulaj|

a|doad Aq seug Buug sy} Jo 8sn Jo S|oAd| By} YsI|gelss 0} salled
ayl Aq uayeuepun aq [m A8AINg e ‘g|geieae Buiaq Jabuoj

ou elep abeuuo] paulsp ybnolog [enioe Jo JuaAd 8yl U] ‘eg

‘ybnosog ueasjas sy} uiyum Buie) sausg
Burig wo.) palos||0d pue JojoruO0) 8yl Aq papinocid elep
abeuuo) [enjoe uodn paseq salled ayi usamiaq paledo|e
aq ||eys sabeuuo} a)g Bulg y Alobaien aisep) 10e4u0) 'g2g

sa)is Buunig 1e sabeuuo] jo uoneso|y g

o3 In0 A1red [[1m oysm uosidd a3 Jo A1uapr oy pue AdAIns SIy)
10J A3o[opoylewt pue adods Ay J, “Bale SANRISIUTWPE SANIed Yord
ur Sutar] ojdoad Aq s931S SuLIg 9y} JO SN JO S[OAI[ Y} YSI[RIS?
0) sonIed oY) AqQ uayeMapun aq [[IM A9AINS € ‘peaI[[BWS

18 TIIN 2y Jo uonodwod ay) 1a3je Joenuo)) redoutig

9} JO WiId) 9y} JO Iea X 10enuo)) 9ardwod 3siy oy Suun ¢g

“JUOWRIIY SIY)

Jo arep a3 01 Joud Jeak [erouruly oY) SuLINp sanIRd AY) JO YorB
0] PIIBOO[[B ATk YOIyM SIS JuLrg 9y} Je segeuuo) y A10391e)
qIse M 10enu0)) jo suoniodoid oy Jo sIseq Y UO ‘(WSIUBYIIN
UOIBOO[[Y [BIOUBUL]) | 9[NPaYDS SIY) YIM 20UBPIOIIE

ur 11ds oq 14 sjuswAed ‘peawews 18 YA 2Yd Jo uonadwo)
9 [IUN JUSWAISY SIY) JO InjeuSIS JO Arep oY) WoL] '7g

S9J1IS SuLIg B Sdgeuuo I, JOo UonedIO[V ‘q

"0g weybuiop

e asue 0} pawasp aq |leys Og a.iysxiag 1sop wouy Buispe

9ISE\\ 10BIUOD JO %0G pue Og Buipesy je asue 0} pawasp

aq |leys Og aiysyieg 1sop woly Buisue slsep) 10esu0D

10 % 0G ‘als Ajuswy OIAID peswW|ewS e PaAledal dISEM
pioyasnoy jo sabeuuo} jo uoneooje ayl jo sasodind ay) 104 Y

‘paldde ase

synsal Aanns 1xau ay} |nun saiued ayl usamiaq pauoiliodde

aq |eys swuswAed moy ysigeise o1 pasn aq (i)

“Jeak auo Jo pouad e 1oy

Jea A 10BJUO0D IXau a8y} jo Buiuuibaq ay) wol) Ajdde (1)

"D 3UIpEY 1 S5UE 0] PIP 24 [[EYS ‘OF
AMYSYIAG ISAM Wox FUISIE IS JOBDUCY ‘A ANUAUIY OIAL) praujews
)8 PoOAIe0QI 91SEM ployasnoy Jo sadeuuo) Jo uonedo[e 2y) Jo sesodind o Jog LY

60



71 10 G a8eq - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

J0} syuswasuedJe julof ayl Jo 9ousanbasuod e se Jayjo yoes
0} suoljes1)qo pue SjysL 9A13Dadsal J1ay3 Sulle)ngal Jo
9sodund ay3 J0j JUSWS3IBY SLYJ OJUL J9IUD 0} Paause aAey
Salled 9yl "9DIAJISS JUSWSGRURY 9]1SEM DA11D9}) pue
JUSIDL}JS DIWOUO0IS Ue JO uoisiAoid ay3 Joj sjuswasdue.le
jutol ayew o1 paploap aAey sated ay]  (g)

ANNOYDANIVE

Kenquod
fedipuud e jo wewebeuew juspe ey ejowoid o} Jepio U pue jo8loid Aey
Joy sjuewsBueire wiof ey jo ecusnbesuod e se Jelpo yoee o) suohebigo pue spybu
eoadsel Jiey) BupeinBes jo esodind ey Joy ewessBy sy o Jejue o} pesibe
BAey selied eyl ‘eopues juewsfieuep ejsep| eajoeys pue Juellye DJWOUCDS
ue jo uoisiwoid eyj Joj sjuswsebueue juof exew o pepjoep saey sejued syl  (g)

‘Alred Bunsanbai ay) 0] pauoiuodde aq Jayealayl ||leys
1oeuO0) [edidulid 8y} Ul s8ley [BUOIIPPY 4O 8INPaydS 8y}
BIA Sallled 9y} JO dUO0 JO 1senbal ay) 1e paysi|ge1se sals mau

woJy Buisue sjuswAed aus Buig 1gnop Jo 8oUBPIOAE 8y} 104 /9

‘sanIed 9yl usamlaq Aqrenba pauontodde
9q [[eYS SoNIRJ oY) JO SBaIe dANRNSIUILIPE 3y} apIsino orqnd ay)
Jo s1oquiowt AqQ SIS FuLlg 2y} 0} PAISAI[IP ASE A\ 10BIIUOD) WOIJ
Sursue syuawAed 911S SIS JuLIg 1qNOP JO A0UBPIOAE U} 10 '9g

“10e1u0)) [edoutd ay3 jo uLo}

3 JO Iea X 10enuo)) SUIMO[[0J IXoU Y} Ul g pue ¢g SIsne[d
M 9OUBPIOJOE Ul UdYEIIOpUN A9AINS AUR JO S)[NSAI AY) JO SISeq
oY) uo sanied Yl usamiaq pauontodde aq [[eys sjuowAed ¢q

‘santed oy) usamiaq pauoniodde oq [[eys sjuswked moy
USI[qEIS9 0 Pasn 9q [[BYS SWeS Ay} JO SINSAI Y} PUE 19)JLaIAY)
IedA [erouBULy IOYI0 AIOAQ pUB AQAINS ISIL A} I9)je SIBaA

om1 pareadar oq [[eYS ¢ 9SNE[O-qnS Ul PI[Ie1op ASAINS Y], ‘g

‘asn Jo uoiuodoud s,Aued 1ey) se Aued yoes Joj uoipodoid awes
8y} ul 89 |reys yoiym Aued yoes Aq spew aq 0} sjuswAed ay)

‘sanaed 9Y) usamiaq A[renba pauoniodde
9q [[eYS SonIed QU3 JO SBaIR dANRNSIUIWIPe Y} 9pIsino orqnd ay)
Jo s1aquiawt Aq SIS SuLIg 9Y) 0} PAIAAI[IP ASE AN 10BIIUOD) WOIJ
Sursue syuowAed 911S SIS SULIg IqNOP JO AOUBPIOAE AU} 10 '9g

10enuo)) redoutld 9yl Jo ud}

oy JO Iea X 1081U0)) JUIMO[[0J IXU ) Ul g pue ¢g Ssne[d
M 9OUBPIOOOR UI UdBLIIpUN AJAINS AUR JO S}[NSAI AY) JO SISeq
oY Uo santed Ayl usamiaq pauontodde aq [[eys sjuowked ¢q

‘sanaed o) usamiaq pauontodde oq [[eys siuswked moy
USI[qEIS9 O pasn aq [[eYsS SWes 2y} JO SINSAI Y} PUE I3)JBaIdY)
Jeak [eIOUBULY JOUIO KIOAQ PUB AQAINS ISIL] 9Y) I9}Je sIeak

om] pareadar oq [Teys £ 9sne[O-qns Ul PI[IeIap AAIns YL, +9

-asn Jo uontodoid s Ared yeyy se A1red yoes 1oy uontodoid sures
ay) ur oq [reys yorym Aured yoeo Aq apewr oq 03 sjuswked ay) jo
uontodoid oy} 19s 01 pasn 2q [[BYS AJAINS ) AQ PAYSI[qeRIS asn
JO s[eA9] Y[, "1oenuo)) redoutd ay) Jo L9} Ay} JO JBd & 10BNU0))
18I1J oY) SUIMO[[0] J2q0I0() PUE dun[ AreniqoJ/Arenuef

ur sporrad YoM 7 921y} J9A0 pajo[dwod aq [[Im AdAInS

U, "preogq [esodsi(q 21se A JUIO[ Y} £q padige 9q [[Im AAIns

61



71 10 9 a8eq - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

PaULILIUOY) 9A13D3dsal U1aY3) Bley 0Ud JuswAed 103deIIu0)
Jeut4 ay3 Aed 1o (3)neJOp UL UD3Q SARY S3l}Jed |1e 249UM)
uol1INqLIIu0) Jeldueul pauolliodold pawaLiuo) Jidy3 03
uonyiodoud ul JuswAed Joideajuo)) Jeuld ayj Aed yjeys pue
€°1°61 9SNB)D YILM ddUepIodde Ul UoLINGLIIU0) Jerdueul
pauol}iodold pawlLjuo)) saljied yoes aaage |jeys saned
93 Sallied 9J0W 10 OM] JO })NeJIP 3Y3 SI YdLYM 1nesaq
]1oUN0) B W04} Pa1NSal Sey UOLjeulwlId) a3 4L Z°€°9Z

9A132adsal J1ay) eiey 0.4d JUSWARY J03DRIIUOD) JeLdURULY
oYy Aed Jo (3)nejop Ul U9aq dARY Sallied )R 9JaYM)
uolINQLIIu0) Jeldueul pauolliododd pawaLiuo) Jidy) 03
uolyiodoud ul JuswAed J03oe13U0) Jeuld 9yl Aed 11eys pue
€°1°6] 9SNe)D YIIM 9dURpIOIIR UL UOLINGLIIUOY) Jeldueuld
pauo1}iodo.d pawlLjuo) saljied yoes aaage |jeys salied
93 Salled 9J0W IO OM] JO })NeJap 3Y3 SL YdLYym 1jnejaq
]12UN0) B W04} Pa}NSaJ Sey UoLjeulw.d) 3yl JLZ°€°9Z

asod.ind s1yj 40} saljied Jaylo ay] JO SIaplo

gulpuels ay3 JaA0 9ouapadald aye) |jeys pue Ajdde Jjeys
11oUNo0?) YsnoJog 159104 19uydelg JO SI9pJ0o Sulpuels ay)
QaMr 243 jo uoljeaistuiwpe ay) jo sasodind ayy Jo4 10l

esodind sy
Joj sajued Jeujo ey} jo siepio Buipues sy Jane souspeoaid exe) jleys pue Adde jeys
fieworig jo siepso Buipueys aul GAMP SUl JO UORBASIUIWPE By} jo sesodind 2y Jod  L'DL

palWI] €34 pue AN ueg OgIN sailed ay} usamiaq
900¢ 4290100 J0 IS¢ dY} pajep uswaalby 10a.iq e (1)

-:uoljelusWNoOp euollippe Buimolo} syl Buipnjoul pue

uo1}eIUSWINDOP JRUOLILppEe
SULMO01]04 93 Sulpn)duL pue |07 Jaquwadaq € uodn
sueulw.al pue 907 1o2qwaa(q + ay3 uodn SuldUSWIWOD
9007 42q0320 L £ palep pajiwl] €3y pue sstlled

3Y3 US9M19q 1DeJIIU0) 3y | (JoeJiuo) jedioulld,,

PaUWIT E3H puB AN
yueg DEIN Soed 8l usemiaq 900z J8qoI0
o ol parep jusweeiby weiq e ()

-1 Uo[ejusLUna3op
reuopippe  Bumolo; ey Bupniou)  pue

uodn
Bupeuuuay pue ayj) uodn
Bupuewiwiod 900z 1890100 pejep peyw]

Edd PuB sejued ey usamieq joenuod Byl Jaenuo) fedpupd,

pOLIad }oRJ3U0)
ay3 1noysnoJyl 3oeJ3uo?) jedidulld ayy jo sasodind
ay3 Joj Ajoyiny SuLIalsStulwpy se 11duno?) ysnolog
Sulpeay julodde 0] poaude aAey saljded ayyl (D)

poped oenuog ay) noyBnoiy joeuog fedpuld ey jo sesodind sy} Joj fuoyne
Bupsisiujwpe se jjpunoy ybnosog Bujpesy jujodde oy peaibe aaey sejed aul (D)

10e11U0) JediduLld Y] JO JusWaSeuew UL}
ay1 ajowoud 031 JapJo ul pue salll)ioe 10aloid A3y

62



71 10 / a8ed - |10z aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

ay1 1o} p1ay eaep uoindwod Aue jo saidod ayel pue

0} SS9JJ' 9ARY pue uolyelIuawWndop Jje pue Aue jo satdod
9Ye] pue aulWeXd }Je)S MILAI9IUL 0] Jomod Syl apn)dul
NM Y3Su syl °(ssadde yons apLaoad osje J1eys uoljew.lojut
J9Y30 JO/pue S3uawndop Yyans sey oym jjeysaq sjt

uo 8utydoe uostad Aue jeyy aindoid 1jeys oym) Ajied Aue jo
10J3U02 Jo Ap0o3snd uolssassod ay3 Ul UoLIRIUSWNDOP e pue
Aue 03 ssadoe pajjtwiad aq )1eys Alied Aue jo sojipne Aue
Jejndilied U "awes ay)l 0} Sulie)ad uoryeue|dxa USILIM

10 jeJo Aue jo uolisiroud ay) aandoud 03 Jo aplaoad 03 pue
10BJ3U0) JediduLld Y3 03 Sulje)ad SJUSWNDO0P JO uolstaoid
ay1 aindoud 03 10 syuawndop apiaoad 0] 91eloldadsul
Alojnjyels uayio Aue Jo ‘AdUasy JuswUOoILIAUT Y] JO JeLdLijo
Aue Suipn)dpul Ayued Aue Jo (1eUIDIXS JO Jeualul JSYISYM)
Joilpne Aue Jo awl) 03 awl wod) 3sanbas Aue yjim Jauuew
Adwiy e ul pue A))n4 93e19do-0D |eysS sallied 9yl +°Z€

so1dod 9ye] pue 0} SS90 dABY pue UOL}RJUSWNDIOP |18 pue
Aue Jo sa1dod aye} pue aulwexs }4els MalAISUL 0} Jomod
3Y3 9pn)duL )M JYSL siyl  “(ssa2oe yons aplaoad os)e 1eys
uolL}eW.IOoUL JSY10 JO/pUR SIUSWNDOP YdNS Sey OYM jeyaq
S31 uo suoe uostad Aue jeyl aundoud 1jeys oym) Ajred Aue
J0 10J3U0D 40 Ap03sSnd uolssassod ayj Ul UoL3RIUSWNDOP 1B
pue Aue 03 ssadde pajltwiad aq )jeys Alied Aue jo Jollpne
Aue Jendnyied uj awes ayj 03 Sulejal uorjeue)dxs
U913LIM U0 Jeuo Aue Jo uolsiroid syl aundoud 03 1o apiaoud
0] pue 30eaju0) jedidulld ay3 03 Sulle)al SJUSWND0pP

40 uolisiroud ay3 aandoud 03 4o syusawndop apiaolad

01 91eJ01dadsul Aioinjels Jaylo Aue Jo ajesoldadsu|

anjeA 1sag ‘Aduady JusWUOoILIAUT] Y3 JO eLdL}J0

Aue Suipn)dul Ajued Aue Jo (1eUI9IXS JO JeuJalul J9YIayM)
Jojlpne Aue Jo sawl) 03 awil} wody 3sanbals Aue yjm Jauuew
Adwiy e ul pue A))n4 93e19do-0D Y|RBYS Sallled 9yl 7€

JUSWS3J3Y UOLINILISUOD) SY) JO JUSWSIBY SIY)

JO J3Y31S JO SUOLILPUOD pue swd} 8y} Jo Aue 03 paJinbal
9q Aew jey) sasueyd Aue sai8e 0} pue || g asne)d

U3IM 9DUBpI0IDR UL OJUL PaJ9IU JUSWS3IZY UOLINILISUO)
dY] pue JUSWaaIGY SLY} JO SWId] Yl MaLAaI 0] Ayed

Aue Aq pasinbaa Ajqeuoseau si Sutlaaw yons j1 Ajyusanbauy
aJow Jo 1oeajuo) jedidulld ay3 Jo ayeq Aiidx3 ayj a1049q
Syjuow Q¢ ueyl aJow Jou INg SYjuow g| Isea) e pue aleq
MIIADY 3U3 JO SUJUOW OM] ULYIIM ]Jeys saljded 9yl L°/Z

JUDWS3I3Y
uoLIN3LISUOD) SY3 JO JUSWSSIBY SIY) JO JSY3LD JO SUOLILPUOD
pue swJa) 3y} jo Aue 03 paiinbali aq Aew jey) sasueyd Aue
92.5e 03 pue |*|°g 9sne]d YIlM 9duUep.aodde ul 0jul palajud

JUSW3IBY UOLINIIISUO) Y3 puUe JUSWS3IBY SLY] JO SWId)
3y MalAal 03 Aed Aue AQ paJtnbal Ajgeuoseal st Sul3aawl
yons J1 Ajauanbauy asow Jo 3oesjuo) Jedidutld ay) Jo ajeq
Aidx3 ay3 910)9q syjuow Q€ ueyj aJow jou Ing syyuow g|
1Se3) 1k pue 91 MILAY UO 193W J|eYS saljded ayl 1 /T

| 9INpayds J0 €7 pue ¢ ¢z ydeaSeded ul paurejuod
jJuswuolliodde jo saydidunid ayl Yyim asuep.uodde

UL pa129449 9q 03 UOLIRINDIED YINS (3)NeJSP UL USSq SARY
Sallied OM) 919YM) uolingLiluo) jetdueul4 pauotliodolid

| S1Npayds

JO ¢z pue ¢z ydeadeued ul pautejuod juswuolyiodde
40 s91d1dutid ay3 Yilm SouepUIodIR UL Pa1d9})o

9Q 03 Uol3RINDIED YdNS (3)NeJOp UL Ud3q dARY Sallled

OM}) 3J9YM) uolINqLIIuUO) Jeldueul4 pauolliodold pawaLuo)

63



71 1o g a8ed - |10z aunf - wea| 123(0id g3

Ioj juowiked A10A009Y AS1oug ayy ST q

2QIY M

*OUd « (T« OYHA « WOL
+TID) +¥0¥d + (X + 1 » (TIHA + WIL) + TIH) =*4

‘B[NWIOJ SUIMO[[O] AU} Y}IM QOUBPIOJI®.
ur pue ‘4, xipuaddy ur no 19s suontodoid oy ur senIRg

) USaMIQq PAIBIO[[E ST JudWIAed AIOA009Y ASIdug U,
uononpouy 1°9

INHINAVd AYHAODHIA ADAINT "9

ueAg|al ey} Joj lJuswAed Alanooay ABleug ayl s| 3

Aued lueasjas ay} 01 8|geINqulle Yuo 1oeiuo)
JueAd|al ay} 1o} JuswAhed Alenodsy Abisug oyl s| X3

I

X0dd.3=X3

‘B|nw.Jo} BUIMOJ|O} BY} YlIM 8oUBpPIOIDR

ul pue ‘¢ xipuaddy ul 1no 18s suoiuodolid ay) ul selued
ay] usamloaqg paleoo|e si Juswhed Alonodey ABisug ay]
uonodnponuj L9

ANIINAVd AHIAODIH ADHINE 9

‘sal1Jed 9yl US9MIa( SUOLIRILUNWIWOD JO UoLjeulplo
-02 9Y3 9qLIISAP LM YDLYM 10203014 SUOLIBILUNWIWOD)
e ‘sallled 9y YILM UOLIRIINSUOD UL ‘MalAaJ AedtpoLiad
pue uteuleW )M AJLoyIny SULISISIUIWPY BYL  7°9€

PIOYylMm UuoI8IosIp a1njosqe sii ul Aew Aued

Aue yoiym saiued auyi |je Jo [eaoidde uanum Joud syl Inoypum
wswoealby oy} Buiuiaouoo Jeyew Aue uo BIpaW SUOIEDIUNWWOD
JBY10 JO olpeJ uoIsIAg|a) ssald By} Jo sanlleluasaidal

YlIM 81BOoIUNWIWOD 10 sases|al ssaid Aue ayew AjBuimouy|

suabe 1o saakojdwa sy J|asi Aq jou [jeys Aued yoe3 | 9¢

ALIDINdNd ANV SNOILV13d JI'1dNd '9¢

ployyum

UoI}240sIp alnjosae

si ul Aew Aued Aue yoiym saiued aui |[e Jo [eaosdde uspium
Joud ay} 1noyum

s woalby oy} Buiuiaouoo Jeyew Aue uo BIpaW SUOIEDIUNWWOD
Jay10 Jo olpelJ UoISIAg|a]

ssaid ay) Jo saAleluUaSaldal Ylim 81eIUNWILWOD IO SaSes|al

ssaud Aue axyew

AlBuimouy sjuabe 1o seakojdwa sy Jjosh Aq jou [jeys Aued yoeg

ALIDINdNd ANV SNOILVY13d JI19Nd '9€

10R13U0) Jedidulld ay3 jo sasodind

10e1jU0) Jedidulid
ay1 Jo sasodind ayj 1o} p)ay eiep Joindwod Aue jo

64



71 10 6 98ed - | LOZ aunf - wea| 123(oid g3

.v
x1puaddy ur Ino 319s se Ajred JuBAJ[AI

oy Joy areys uomgodoid oy S|

(9orIo)UT SPISAY L) T AMPIYIS
opun [ouno) Yyl AQq PoLIUPUL
9q 0] 10 Aq 9[qeded sjunowe

Yo ‘Sununod  J[qnop  INOYIAL
uonexapuy S|
opIsaye T J0j 9011 dFe[ney 2y S|

(QorjIyU]
opIsaye]) 7 dMPpayds§ o3 juensind
sprouno)) oy Aq peaaoidde ueaq aaey
SOLIQAI[OP YONS aIdym IOIOBINUOD) Y}
£q PAIoATp (VSAM AUl Ul paulyop
se) _Amuend) [enuuy WOWIXBIA],
oyl  oaoqe  o3euuo) Aue  pue

d3euuo], 9[qeadiey) opIsaye| I S|

93euuoy], o[qeasieyD opIsaye oyl
Aq pordnnu (quowerg o3eney 9yl
3uIpnoxe) 99 9Jer) opIsaye Y} S[

KyIed JuBAQ[aI 9U) 0) d[qeIngLje
IUOJN|  10BIUOD)  JUBAJ[AI  9U)

*Odd

"TIHH

WL

TIdH

¥ Xipuaddy ui Ino 18s
se Aued ueasjal ay} 4o} aseys uoiuodold ayl S| XOHd

1oBIU0D
[edioud ayi jo (wsiueyosy JuswAed) ¥g o|npayods
YHM S0UBPIODI. Ul PaleINdJed Se Yluol 10eljuo)

65



ZL 40 0L 98ed - 1107 dunf - wea] 199[0id €31

2QIUY M
I0d « T="1

‘e[nuLIo} SuImor[oj}
U} YA QOUBPIODOE Ul Paje[no[ed SI (suononpog
QOUBULIOJISJ UOTSIOAI(] PUE SUONONPI(] QOUBULIOJIdJ

KI9A009Y 3JuIpn[oxa) JuswiAed [[UpueT A[YIUON YL

yuswike  [IFpue A[PUOTA YL,

A)red jueAQ[al 9y} 0} 9[qeIngLie YIUoN
JOBIIUO)) JUBAQJ[I Q) JOJ JUdWAR [[Ijpue] A[YIUOIN oY) S| X7

QIOU A
I0d = T="1

‘e[nuIoj SUIMO[[0] AU} Y} S0UBPIOII. UL

PoIB[NO[BD SI (SUOIIONPR(] AOUBULIOJIS UOISIOAL( Pu® suononpag
QOUBULIONQ] AI9A029Y SUIPN[OX?) JuawAe [[IJpue] A[IUOIA YL

yuduwIAe  [[pue] A[PUOIN UL, T°L

.v

xipuaddy ur Ino 1as se Aled JuBA[AI
oy 1o oreys uoniodoid oyy ST O¥d
Uuopunic) I10J Ao a3e[ney oY) S| OMHA

10JOoBIIU0D)

oY) (JO Jeyeq UO I10) AQ POIAISP
a3euuo], 9[qeasdiey) uopunic) Y} S| wnJ,

93euuo ], 9[qeasdiey)) uopunic) ay)
Aq pordninu (QJuowe[g oSe[neH 9yl
3uIpn[ox9) 994 9B UOPUNIL) AY) ST TID

66



Z1 Jo |} 98eq - |10Z unf - wea| 133(0.d €31

(1) 7 1L = *10d

2QIY M

Vv L10392)

JSBAA JOBIIUO)) [BNPISIY 0} UOHNLIIUO)) ITLIUDIIJ

[IUOJA 10BTUO)) JUBAS[QI
oy ur J1ojenuo)) oYl Aq [[puel
0] JUas Yy A1039)e) QIsep 10BIUOD
JO 9Seuuo] [10) 9Y) 0) AlIed JUBAQ[AI
oy £q uonnquuo)) a3eIUAIIJ Y} S|

joenuo)) redourd ay)
JO (WSIUBYIJA JUSWAR]) t¢ [MPaY2S
YIIM  QOUBPIOdOE Ul PAJe[no[ed
JIUOJN|  10BIIUOD)  JUBAQ[AI  dY)

10J juawAed [[ypue] A[QIUOIN Y} S|

K)Ied JUBAS[I 9y} 01 9[qeINqLIIEe
JIUOJN  10BNUO)D)  JUBAJ[AI )

10J JuawAed [[JpueT A[QIUOIN oY) S|

“10d

€L

IUOJA J0BIIUOD) JUBAS[RI Ay} 10] Y A10T9)e)
QISBAA 10BNUOD) [BNPISY JO a5euuo) [8101 oy} ST L2

JIUOIA 19B1IUOD) JUBAD[QI ) JOJ ALIed JUBAQ[QI Q) 0} [qeInqLie
V A103918)) 9)SE A\ 10B1IUOD) [BNPISAY JO 93eUUO) oY) S| XL

YIUOJA 10B1UOD) JUBAS[AI AY) UI J0JOBRNUOD)
9} 01 PAIAAI[AP V A10591B)) JISEAN 10BIIU0)) [BNPISIY 810}
Y} 01 Aled JUBAQ[AI AU} AQ UOIINGLIUO)) 238IUddId Ay ST X' IDd

JQIOY M
(TL#)/(LL) == XTDd
V £10393%)

JJSEAA J9BIIU0)) [eNPISIY 0} UONNGLIIU0)) ITLIUIJ €/

YIUOJA] J0BIIUO)) JUBA[SI A} UL J0JOBIUOD) Y} 0}
PAIAAI[P V AI0331B)) 9ISBAN 10BIIUO)) [enpISAyY [101 3y} 0) Klred
JueAQ[RI 9y} Aq UONINQLIIU0Y) 95.IUA0I9d Y} ST X' IDd

10enuo) redounig ay) Jo (WSIUBYIIN
JuoWARy) ¢ S[NPIYIS YIIM 9OUBPIOIIE UT PAR[NI[D YIUOA
JoBIIUOD) JUBAQ[AI A} J0J JuawAed [[IJpue] A[YIUOI Y ST T

67



ZL 40 7L 98ed - 1107 dunf - wea] 129[0id €31

o3euuo], 10911 preyy3ing ay3 1qnop
JO 90ouBpIOA® 9} 10J SUIPN[OXA YIUOIA
10B1UOD) JUBAQ[QI AU} Ul JOJOBRNUO))
oyl AQ [[ypue 01 jJuas Yy AKI039e)
AseA\ 10enuo) Jo aSeuuo) oyl S|

(IUOJA[ J0BIUOD) JUBA[I )
10j Kjred jueAd[al y) 0) 9[qeInguIE
[[Jpuel ©0) JUds v K10391e)

QISeA\ 10enu0)) Jo oSeuuol oy S|

YIUOJA J0BNUO)) JUBAS[AI
oyl ur Joyenuo) Yl Aq [[jpue]
0] Juas Yy AI03918)) QISBAN 10BNUO)D)
Jo o3euuo) [ejo} Y} 03 A1Ied JUBAQRI
oy AQ uonnqrIIuO)) 2FeIUAI Y} S|

“10d

68



Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

69



This page is intentionally left blank

72



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board
	5 Progress Report
	6 Audit of re3 Joint Waste PFI
	Re3 waste contract - final audit report

	7 Review of Joint Working agreement
	JWA Changes 2011 22 June

	Report Containing Exempt Information
	9 Risk Register

